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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

REFORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have the pleasure in submitting their Financial Statements for the. periodd
ended 31 December. 2019 along with the Report of the Auditors ther¢on

Legal Form
The bank was incorporated in Nigeria as o Limited Liabality Company on 17 Seplember 2003,
under the name of Ril -Gwan Commumnity Bank Limited.
a} The name of the bank was change to HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited by
Special reselution on 13 May 2008,
b The following subsenbers of Ril-Ciwan Community Bank Limited relinguished
their shareholding to the new shareholders:

i Creative Financial Consulianis Limaed - B2 SR D
il.  Rogoyce Investments Limited - 12,500,000
) The shares of the Bank were - allofted as follows:

i, Prof { Mrs) Nei Okereke - Onvigke = T A0, O
it Ava Okercke - 2500, (0
iii. Augustine Rogers Nwoke - 3,750,000
v, fovee Rogers-Nwoke . 25040 (0
y Micheal Rogers-Nwoke . 1. 2500, (R0
Ly Dagopn- [veimo - 5 DR (R0
vii,  Abinye lyeimo - 2 500,000

di The changes were subsequently filed with Corporate AtTairs Commission on 21
August 2003

] Al ihe Board of Directors meeting held 24 December 2008 the authanized share
capital of the Bank was increased 10 N275m by the creation of additional 2530m
ordinary shares ata nominal value of N1 each, The increase was filed with
Cormporate Aflas Commission on @ January 2008,

N At the Board of Directors meeting held 238 March 2010, the authorized share
capital of the Bank was increased to N300m by the creation of additional 2235m
ordinary shares at o nomimal value of X1 each, The increase was filed with
Corporate Affairs Commission on 21 April 20140,

Al the Board of Directors meeting held 5 October 2014, the authorizesd share
capital of the Bank was increased to N 1billion by the creation of additional
S00m erdinary shares-at a nominal value of N1 each. The increase was filed m
the :."I'I”“'Hl'l-,lh.' AfTaies Commission on 1 Octoher 204

Principal Activities o
[he prncipal activities of the Bank dre Mcrolnance banking semvices

1]
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

1. DIRECTORS
1. The names of the present Directors are listed on pages ii.
3. In accordance with articlé 33 of the bank’s articles of association, the bank can by
ordinary resolution remove a director and appoint another person in his stead.

. DIRECTORS INTEREST
1. The interest of the directors in the issued share capital of the bank as recorded in the
register of Directors” shareholding as at 31 December, 2019 are as follows:

Prince Olomingbemiga Tivamiyu 14,366,667
Prof. Wdi Okercke-Onviuke 52,500,000
Juliana Mgowi Achuining 13,666,667
Dragogo Emman lyeimo 15690000
Rogers Augustine Nwoke [EEACTIRELY

3. SHAREHOLDINGS STRUCTURE
Thie sharcholders’ interests in the issued share capital of the bank as recorded in the register ol
the bank as at 31 December. 2019 are as follows:

4. ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING

| Range | Numberof | Numberof | %

- | Sharcholders | Shares held

[I0%: - 2000000 | 1 | 1050000 016 l
3.000,001-  7.000,000 | 4 2T sch:aﬂ [ 4.30 '
7.000.000-  9.000,000 | 3| 23750000 | 3.7

| 9.000.001-  18.000,000 | 3 54933334 | 8.56
1,000,001 - 50,000,000 | 2 | 62.4690,000 877

30,000,001 - 100.000,000 | 6 | 322.500.000 | 5025 |
[ 100.000.001- 150.000.000 | 1 [ 149,000,000 [ 23333

_Total 22 | 641,519,167 | 1040

5. DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements. which givesa
true and [air view of the siate of affairs of the Bank as at the end of each hingncial year and
of the profit or loss for that vear which should comply with the provisions of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act. CAP C20LFN 2004 and Banks and Other Financial Instiution Act,
CAP B3 LFN 2004. In doing so. they ensure that:

*  Adequate internal control procedures are instituted 10 safeguard the assets, prevent

and detect frawds and other imegularities;
*  Proper accounting reconds are maintained.

i



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

| Name of Shareholders | No. of Y of
e Shares | Shareholding |
| Augustine Rogers Nwoke | 149,000,000 23.23% |

Rogoyee Invesiment Limited [ (1[: 000000 | 9358

Prof, Ndi ﬂL-:-n:Ln: {:_I_m |1Jl.|.. 2,500,000 5. 18% o
| Ava Okereke Onyiuke 5? S00.000 | B.18%

| Crealive Flnam,ial {‘nnr.uhanli Lid 52,500 UH'D B 18%

Ihhn:i Fnugcml..s Lu'l'nld.‘-l.i 52,500, l.Il?.ID 8.18%

Mlmng Syslem lell-;."d __| 52500 000 | 5. 18%;

Dangogo-Enmman Iyeimo I8 Wﬂ_ﬂiﬂﬂ_ __290% |
 N.D.I System ] 14000000 | 2.1%%

Rear Adm, Festus F'lJI‘b\.-ﬂl £.000,000 | L L25%:

I HA.SA.I “Stall Muhlpuqmu. Cooperalive b2 G0, DD 2.001%

Seciely i e—— :
| Tobechukwu {Jmh 7.8475.000 1.23%
rlhl.fl-l:{rhﬁﬂ_ﬂlch | TEIS000 | L.23%
| Juliana Achumine i3 i'.r'l'futs-!'.‘l_{!"-' 2:13%

D, -\bhm Eke 7000000 | 1L.0%% =
| Tiyamiye Olorungbemiza 19.366.667 | 2.24% |
| Jovee Rogers-Nwoke 5:075.000 0,799 i

HFILS.-\L Ehan.llu-ldi. rs Cooperalive B S0.000 0.96% |

h*ln.hqu,.l F.:'-u,r:: ""-:'.'.nl-,u. 1 237 5000 11 i {FS-T}".. |
| Ti Tifah leal::d £.133.333 (962 '

.-’thm'-.:. 'In.lmu 100000 16%
| Dadavine oil & Gas 44.000.000 | 686% |
Total 641519167 LRI

= Applicable accounting standards are adhered to;
= Judgment and estimates made are reasonable and prudent:
The financial statements are prepared on the going concem basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Bank will continue in business.

6. Board and Management

Az at 31 December 2019 the HASAL Board of Directors is made up of seasoned professionals
in banking. corporate finance; oil & pas, capatal market and commerce.

The Board 15 a seven-man board comprised of Chairman. the Managing Director and four Non-

Executive Directors.



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

1i.

fii.

Princs Olorungbemiza Tivamivu:
Clichivninn

Olorunghemiga holds an MBA from the Research Institute for Management, Dellt
Netherlands with over 35-vear career in the Nigerian Civil Senvice before
retirement. His carcer achievement led 1o various appoiniments in the Civil Service
Commission final before retirement being Director (Organisation Support) of the
Economic & Financial Crimes Commission {EFCC).

Olorunghemiga is an avid golfer and a member of the prestigious IBB Goll Club
Abuga.

Mr. Rogers Auzustine 1. Nwoke;
Managing Director Chicf Execurive OfficeriOmigoing)

Rogers holds an MBA from Warwick Business School. University of Warwick.
England where his research interest focused on Microfinance and Entrepreneurship
Development. This led to birth of HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited where he is
the Chiel Executive Ofcer.

He 15 an Alomnus of Harvard Business School Accion Program in Strategic
Leadership for Microfinance. He is also a Fellow of the Institute of Charered
Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN) an Honorary Sernor Member (HCIB) of the Chartered
Institute of Bankers of Nigena.

Hiz wealth of experience span over 2 decades in the MNigeria Finance Indusiry. He 15 an
Intermnational Certified Expert on Microfinance (iCME) and Intemational Cerntified
Expert in SME. Finance (CSME) [rom the Frankiur School of Finance and
Management, Genmany,

Prof. Mrs. Nedi Okereke-Onviuke (O0N)
Nenr-Executive DNrector

Prof has over thiny-five vears Capital Market experience, working in the Capital Market
from the Mew York stock exchange (0 the Nigerian Stock exchange where she ross (o
the position of the Director Gencral.

She 15 2 world scelaimed financial expert who has distinguished hersell in her field of
Endeavor. She belongs to many Professional Institations including Chartered Institute
of Stockbrokers (Fellow), Afncon Stwk Exchanpe Assccmtion (ASEA) World
Federation of Exchanges (WFE ) (o mention but a few,

Vi
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iv,

Ty

vil.

Mr. Dagogo Emman Iveimo;
Noen- Excentive Director

Dagogo holds an MSC in Economics from University of Manchester, United Kingdom
and a professional Accountant and Chartered Stockbroker. His experience spans over
the Nigerian Capital Market where he commensed his career from and row has his own
Stock Broking firm. His competencies centre on Asset & Fund Management, Corporate
Finance. stock broking and dealings amongst others.

He 1san avid chess and tennis player.

Mrs, Juliana Nzozi Achunine;
Now-Executive Divector

Cwverdl VEArs W orking expenence as Civil Servant with the Federal Civil Sepvies wiere
she started from the Ministry of Finance and spent 21 vears there, to office of the Head
of Service of the federation as Assistant Director. 10 Federal Ministry of Health as
Deputy Director, to the Federal Ministry of Aviation as Deputy Director where she
retired in 20140.

Her academic background is in Public Administration from Michigan State University
USA.

Mr., Henry limoh Akpan;
MNeae-Exed etive [Nrecior

Henry has over 9 vears working experience covening busingss development, human
resources, and training and in the Financial Sector. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree from Federal University of Minna, a Cenified Project Manager and Certilied
Ecomomist,

Ar. Benjamin Okorie-Agidi;
Neon-Execarive Tndepondent DNrecior

Benjamin has Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from University of Pon
Harcourt, he is an innovative leader imbeed with high collaboration skills. He 15 a
Fellow, of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountams (ACCA), Fellew, of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (1CAN) Master of Science - Intemational
Trade - Robert Gordon University, Aberdeen PTDF Scholar.

He has competences in different areas of inance.
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vill.  Mrs Nwanna Amerlia Joel-Excugo;
Maraging Directar/Chicl Excentive Officer (In-contingi

Nwanna has Masters in Business Administration ( Banking/Finance) ESUT Enugu and B.Sc.
[Hons] in Accountancy - Imo [Abia] State University. She has over 30 vears of progressive
experience as a Banking, Financial services and Investment expert.

She has demonstrated enonmous capacity in working in organuzations where integnty, ethics
and hard work is adequately appreciated and rewarded before joining HASAL in October
2019 as the MD/CED.,

She is an alumnus of the prestigious Harvard Business School. Lagos Business School and
the ACCION. ILOVITC Programs and a member of lkoyi Club 1938, She is a Fellow,
Institute of Chantered Accountants of Nigerin (FCA), Associate, Taxation & Pension
Institutes [ACT] & ACIP), Centfied Microfinance Professional (MCIB), Member, Institute
of Management Chartered (MNIM), Cenificate i Strategic Management — Boulder
Microfinance Institute, and Honorary Senior Member (HCIB) of the Chantered Institute of
Bankers of Nigeria.

Her wealth of experience span over 3 decades in the Nigena Finance Industry. She has
experiences in different aspect of Banking with core competences in Risk Management &
Control, Policy Formulation and Implementation, Financial planning and Business
Development, Corporate Treasury Management, Origination and Syndication of Bonds.
Treasury and Imermational capital market ete.

7. DONATION

The Bank made donation: giftsm form of Corporate Social Besponsibility of M3midlion
during the vear.

8. FINED ASSETS

Movements in fixed assers during the vear are shown in the notes to the account, In the
opinion of the Directors, the market values of the bank’s properties are not less than the
value shovwn i the linancial ststemenis,

9. EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEES

1. Employment of Disabled persons:
Applications for employment by disabled persons recerved full and Yair consideration
having regards to the aptitude and ability of cach applicant. The Bank had one disabled
persons in her emplovment as at 31 December 2019,

o

Health, Safety at work and Wellare of Emplovees:

viil



HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

Health and safery regulations are in force within the premises of the bank. The bank
provides subsidy to all levels of emplovees towards transportaiion. housing. lunch and
medical expenses.

3. Emplovees” Involvement and Training:
The bank provides training for its emplovees through both intermal and external courses

Itk POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Ihere were no significant post balance sheet events, which could have had a material ¢ffect
on the state of affairs of the bank as at 31 December 2019 which have not been adequately
provided for or disclosed in the linancial statements

11, AUDITORS

In accordance with section 337(2) of the companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LEN 2004,
Adenusi & Co. (Chartered Accountants) has indicated their willingness to continue in office. A
resolution will be proposed authorizing the Dircctors to determine their remuneration

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

‘-I-_|__.'T e
seeretaries i the Board
8 May 2020
Abuja, Nigeria




HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION
Hasal Microfinance Bank Limited maintaing high Standards of Corporate Governance and besi
practice. This is reviewed from time to lime to ensure we keep pace with global standards,

THE DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY PERSONNEL

The Directors and other key personnel of the bank complied with the Codes of Corporale
Governance issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) for Microfinance Banks in Nigeria
during the period under review,

=HAREHOLDING
The Bank has a sharcholding structure with no single ultimate individual beneficiary holding
more than 23.23% of the Bank’s total issued shares.

BORAD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting the sirategic direction of the bank and also
oversight of senior Management. It also ensures that good Corporate Governance processes and
best practices are implemented.

The Board of the bank consists of persons of diverse discipline and skills; chosen on the basis of
professional background and expertise, business experience and integrity as well as knowledge of
the bank’s business.

Diirectors are fully abreast of their responsibilities and knowledgeable in the business and are
therefore able 1o exercise good judgment on issues relating to the bank” business, They have on
thie basis of this acted in good faith with due diligence and skill and in the overall best interest of
the bank and relevant stakeholders duning the pervod under review.

BOARD STRUCTURE

The Board is made up of a Non-Exccutive Chairman. five Non-Executive Directors and one
Executive Director, MD/CED, In compliance with CBN directives, an independent Mon-
Executive Director has been appointed but still awaiting CBN approval.

The Managing Director Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day to day nunning of the
hank, assisted by the Executive Committee (EXCO).

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

I. The Board shall be sccountable and responsible for the performance and affairs of the MFB.
Specifically, and in line with the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA)
1940 {as amended). Directors owe the MFB the duty of care and loyalty 1o act in the umerest of
the MFB*s shareholders and other stakeholders: »

2. Members ofthie Board are severally and joimly liable for the activities of the MFB.
X
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

1. The Board shall define and document the MFB’s strategic goals. approve is fong and shon-
term business strategies and monitor their implementation by management,

4. The Board shall determine the skills. knowiedge and expericnee that members require which
shall. at the minimum, be in line with the requirements of the Approved Persons Reginte.

5 The Board shall ensure that its human, material and financial resources are effecavely deployed
towards the attainment of set goals of the MFB.

6 The Board shall appoint the CEO as well as 1op management staft and establish a framework or
delegation of authority in the MFB. which shall comply with extant regulations issucd by the
CBM from time to fime,

7 The Boaid <l establish and monitor agreed performance targets lor the managsement.

& The Board shall set limits of autherity, specifving the threshold for large transactions which it
must approve before they take place.

0. The Board shall ensure that a succession plan is in place for the MD/CEO for Unit MFBs: and
MDVCEO and executive directors for Stale and National MFBs,

10. The Board shall consider. approve and monitor the implementation of the MFB s budget,
including setting expenditure limits for management and Boand Committees.

11, The Board shall approve credit facilities in line with the approved limits of authority of the
MFB.

12, The Board shall ensure strict adherence to the Code of Conduct for Direclors of Banks and
Oher Financial Institutions in Nigena.

The membership of the Board during the vear is as lollows:

Board of Derectors

| Mr. Olorungbemiga Tiyamiyu
| Mr. Rogers Al Nwoke
| Prof. Ndi Okereke-Onyiuke
| Mr.Dagogo lveimo
1 Mrs. Juliana Ngazi Achuning
Mr. Heary Akpan

A .
|
2

e— ":-iir:-:aﬂdmlIlij};l;::l.';:'E:EEi:i— - — -
LA —hMrs, Nwanna Amerlia Joel-Freugo
xl
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

The Board meets at least every quarter and in special circumstances call for exira-ordinary
sessions to address urgent matters requiring the anention of the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board carries out its oversight functions using its various Board Committees, This makes for

efficiency and allows for 3 deeper attention 1o specific maiters for the Board,

Membership of the Committee of the Board is imended 10 make the best use of the skills and
experiences of non-Executive directors in particular.
The standing Committees of the Boand are:

A, GOVERNANCE. MOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

L Mrs. Juliana N. Achunine  (Non-Executive Director) Chairperson
1I. Mr Henry Akpan { Non-Executive: Director) MMembei
Il.  Mr. Rogers Nwoke (Cungoing Managing Director/CEQ) Member
V.  Mrs Nwanna Amerlia Joel-Ezeugo (Incoming Managing Director/CEQ)  Member

B, RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

l. Mr. Heary Akpan (Non-Executive Director) Cliairmian
Il Mrs. Juliana Achunine ( Mon-Executive Director) Member
1L Mr. Rogers Nwoke (Managing DirectorCED Member
V.  Mps Nwanns Amerlia Joel-Ezeugo (Incoming Managing DirectorCEQ)  Member

C. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

I Mr. Dagogo lyeimo [ Mon-Executive Director) Chairman
1. Nr. Benjamin Okorie-Agidi  (Non-Executive Director) Member
L. Mr. Rogers Nwoke i Managing Director/CECH Membser
IV,  Mirs Nwanna Amerlis Joel-Ezeugo (Incoming Managing Director CEQ) Member

. AUDIT COMMITTEE

I Mr. Benjamin Okorie-Agidi  (Non-Executive Director) Chairman
Il Mr. Dagogo Iveimo {Non-Executive Director) Member
I,  Mr. Henry Akpan i Non-Executive Director) Member

Esch Commities"s Toerms of Belerence ane:

i. Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee”s terms of reference include Succession
plan, recruitment of Senior Management, evaluation and compensation of CECL Pension matoers

eli.
&

%1
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

1. Risk Management Committee’s terms of reference include approval of capital expenditures.
ensure expendilures is in ling with approved budget, compliance with laws in respect of directors

related panty transaction. reviewing remuneration policy & structure.

iv. Credit Committee terms of reference is to ensure the Bank has quality risk asset, ensure

director-related transactions are not abused i,

v. Audit Commitiee tenms of reference is to appraise audit conducted mtermally and extemnally,
review adequacy of internal control and ensuring compliance with prudential guidelines of the

Bank.

Directors” Remuneration Policy:
MNon-Executive Directors

Our Directors are only entitled to siming allowance and offshore allowance when a meeting is

held which caters for thewr logistics.

Directors are also sponsored for training programs that they require 1o erhance their duties 1o the

bank.

Execeutive Directors

The remuneration policy for Executive Directors considers various elements, including fixed
remuneration, taking into account the level of responsibility, and ensuring this remuneration 15
competitive with remuneration paid for equivalent posts in Microfinance banks of equivalent

slatus in Nigena.

Schedule of board committees meeting held during the year

Full Board and Conuninee Meeting was held 4 times duning the year. The only director not
present at any of the meetings was Proll Ndi Okereke-Onyiuke with no apology or proxy.

The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Board of directors, board commitices and

members” attendance at these meeting during the vear under review:

TR e T

Number of Mecting
Adtended by
Members

logl-Ezeugao

I — o — —
Risk Management [" Chearier 25°4° 9 Mr Henry Akpan
I Quarter 23719 Mg Juliona Achunine
3 Quarer 24019 | M- Rogers Nwoke

| All board members

Board Committees | Date of Attendees |
Committee |
Rl - Mlectings = |
Ciovernance, 1" Chaner 254719 Wrs Juliana Achunine
Nomination and 2™ Quaarter 25719 | Mr Henry Akpan
Remuneration 3 Qiarter 24 10709 1 ypr Rogers Nwoke
47 Craarter 2312000 | spee swanna Amerlia |

attended 4 meetings
each except Mrs
MNwanna Amierlia
loel-Ezcugo that
attendicd 2 meslings
24-001- 2019 and 23-
Jun 2020

' -’n I l'ﬁmr-.i n-'.n'n.’:.h; h-n S

anended 4 meetings

| each except Mrs _

e = —

wiil
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| 4" Quaner 2312020 | Mrs Nwanna Amerlia | Nwanna Amerlia
Jocl-Exeugo | Joel-Ezeugo that |
. I | attended 2 mectings
' 24-0i-2019 and 23-
— | = Jan 2020
| Credit Risk 17 Quarter 25:419 Nr Dagogo lyeimo All board members
Management | 2 Quaner 257719 | Mr, Benjamin Okorie- | attended 4 meetings
| 3% Quarer 241019 | Anidi each except Mrs
4% Quarter 2312020 | ngr Riopers Nwoke MNwanna Ameriia
Mrs Mwanna Amerlia Joel-Ezeugo that
| Joel-Ezeugo attended 2 meetings
i 24012009 and 23-
' = | Jan 2020 —
FAGHL: 1 Quamter 25419 | Mr. Bengomin Okorie-Agidi | 4 meetings each :
2% Oparter 25719 NrDagogo Eyvéimo

3™ Quarter 24'10119 | Mr Henry Akpan

The Bank's analyvsis of Fraud and Forgeries Returns is as given below:

Nature of | Number | % Actual loss |
frawd recorded | Loss tothe Bank
= | LX)

AT [wn | T

| Staft |3 N Al
{Popaenre | | [fccoventd. |
Cmpersonation [Nl || |
| Stolen‘forged | Mil |

LT ] I [N D
(Ohes (M1 [ | |
| Total | Nil_

AMONITORING COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chiel Compliance Officer

The bank has put arrangement in place for the appointment of 3 Chief Compliance Officer who
will monitor compliance with money laundering requirements and the implementation of the code

of Corporate Governance of the bank.
'

The Chief Compliance Oflfcer and the Company Secretary will forward regular retums to the
Genwal Bank o£Nigeria on all whistle-blowing reports and also on Corporate Govemance

bk
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

compliance. Assess the appropriateness of internal policies, procedures and guidelines, ensure a
follow-up of any idennfied deficiencies, make recommendations for amendments, where
necessary, and supervise the implementation of comective measures 10 mitigate the icdentified
deliciencies:

Codes of Conduct
Hasal Microfinance bank has internal Code of Professional Conduct for Employees and Direciors,
which all members of staff subscribe 1o upon assumption of duties,

Annual Internal Audir

The Internal Audit Department of Hasal Microfinance Bank Limited carries oul annual aedit of
each of the bank branches in line with the Bank's Annual Awdit Programime amd provide
assurance on air tight control for policies and practices of the various departments and units of the
bank. This sudit exercise covers all operational areas of the hank and the outcome 15 discussed
with Executive Managemen for timely intec o onon on identilied lapses. It is important to note
that this exercise is distinct from the daily operations transactions review carmed out by the
respectivie intermal Control unit within the branches and Head Office departments/units

Duarterly Loan Review/ Audit

This audit is carries out by the Internal Audn depantment of Hasal Microfinance Bank Limited.
The core areas of concentration during this audil exercise include asset gualily assessment, loan
performance, review of secunity pledge, loan conformity with Credit Policy Guideline (CPG),
documentation check and review of central Liability report among others.

Heport of External Auditors

In line with global best practices and regulatory puidelines, the bank undenakes review of
Management letters from External Auvditors on periodic audit of the bank. This is 1o ¢nsure that afl
exceptions are complied with and for implementation of the Auditors” recommendations.
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REPORTS OF THE ALUMTORS TO THE MEMBERS OF HASALAMICROFIXANCE BANK LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
We have zedited the acoompanying fineneinl statemrents of HASAL MICROFINANTE BANK LIMITED
Which comprise the financial podition ax a1 3] December 2019 and stement of comprefrensive income, and statement
of cazh flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting palicies set out in pages 7t 17 and
eher explanatlocy noles set oul.on pages 18 to 44 for the vear ended 31 December 2009, prepared under the
historical cost convention and going concern basis in line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Respeciive Responsibilities of Directars and Auditors
In accordance wuih the provisions of section 334 and 335 of the Compamies and Allied matiers Act, 1990, the Company’s
Direciors are responaible for the preparation of the financial statements which pive 3 true and fiair view of the Swate of Affurs
of the Company snd of the comprehensive income For the financinl vear, These inclade ensaring thar.-
- Adequate nternal control procedures ane instituted 1o safe guard the Bank's Assets as well as preventing and detect
fraud and other iregulanties.
- Proper accounting records are kepl
- Sustaining accounting policies are used and consistently applied in line with accounting standard
- The financial starements aré prepared on & going convem basis, uniexs it is presunse that the Bank will not continue in
bussiness.
It 18 our pesponsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audil, oo those statemenis and 1o repart our opinion
1o you.
Basis of Opinion
We conducted ouraodit in accordance with Imtzrmanonal Standards on Auditing. An sudit inchudes examination, on test
bazis, of evidence relevant 10 the amount and disclosares in the financial sistement. 1t alzo includss an assessment of the
sighificant estimate and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the Fnancial stiement and of whether the
gooounting policies are appropriate to the Company s circumstances, consistently applied and adequasely disclosed,

We planned and performed our audit so' s to obiain all the information and explanations which we considered necessany
i order 10 provide us with sufficient evidence 1o give reasonable assurance that the financial statement are free from
material misstatement, whether caesed by fraud, eror or other imegularity, In forming our opinion, we sl evaluate the
overall adequacy of the presemation of infarmaton in the financial statement, and assessed whether the company’s books
of aceount had been properly kepl
Oplniom
In our opinion. the Assets have been properly valued and adequate provision have been made for depeeciation in the value
thereot, the Bank’s books have been properly kept, the bank have not contravened the bank and other fisancial inginztion
Acts (BOFIA)Y or any other regulatory guldelines, The financial statements which are in agreement with the book of
aceounts, give a true and fair view of the state of alfairs of the Bank for the vear ended 11 Decernber. 2019 and complies
with the Companies and Allied Maners Act, 1990, Bank and other financinl institution Acts (BOFIA), Nigeria Deposit
Insuranc2 Act 1988 and relevant Central Bank of Nigeria regulations and circulars.
Coniraventivns
The bank did not contravened any section of the banks and other Ainancial instiation Acts during the year.
The fnancial statements which ane in agreseent with the book of scoounts. give & true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Bank: {or the year ended 31 December 2019
Other reporting responsibilitiey
The Bank has compiied with 152 relevant Intemational Firansial Rzporting Standards (except IFRS 9). the Companies and
Allied Mawers Act, 1990, Fmancial Reporing Council of Nigeria, Bank and other financial imstitution Acts (BOFIA),
-';}Htrlrl D/.:r(:;,:,iq Insurance Act 1955 and relevant Central Bank of Migeria Circulars.
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 101%,

31 December, 31 December,
MNole 2019 2018
M [HHY LMY
Imierest inCom & 1.057. 804 L s
Inlerest expenss b (A0 319} (483,330}
—

Net interest income 617487 627,862
Irpairment charge for Orther known losses B8 (39,361
Irmpairment charge for credit losses [ {26,359 (43,705}
Nel interest income after impairment charge
for losses 591,128 544,785
Fee and commission income 8 162.210 145,191
S1aiY expensds 9 (130,023) [ 344,568)
Depreciation and amortisation i) {25.99%) § X0 SR
Other operating expenses 11 {250,069) [ 303.693)
Profit/([.oss) before fax 47251 1, 736
Information Technotogy Development Levy I2b (1473 (107}
Income lax expense 2 { 850 (510)
Profit’ { Loss) for the year 124,929 10,118
her Comprehensive Ingome
Exchange Rate Revaluation Gain
Revaluation Surplus iy
Profit for the year attributable to:
Cromers of the parent 124,929 TR
Total comprehensive income for the year 124,929 10,11%
Total comprehensive income for the year
attribuiable to the Owners of the Company 124,929 14,118
Earnings per share for profit attributable o
pwners of the parent
Basic and diluted carnings per share (kobo) 13 19 : 002

The motes on pages 7 1o 43 are an imtegral pant of these financial statements
The financial statements on pages 310 6 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 8 May,
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A5 AT 3 DECEMBER 2019

Asgels

Cash and balances with banks
Financial assets held o maturity
Loans and advances e banks
Loans and advances to customerns
Ohiher assets and prepavients
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred 1ax - Assel

Toial asscrs

Liahilifics

Deposits from customens
Current income tay, liability
Deferred income tax liabiliy
Oiber liabilities

Borrowings

Taotal liabilities

Equity

Share capital

share premiunm
Statitory Reserve
Regulatory Risk Reserve
Revaluation Reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Total equity and labilities

31 December,
208
N'000

334,061
SO (KD
570,409
4,352 327
S0.648
443,722
7.449

5.967.617

2. 850,906
20

187,500
585,493

3827409

641,519
180,650
519033
1,306,086
108.521
{6135.602)

2,140,207

31 December,
Ml 2w

I4 246,242
15 268,725
13 4524
7 4,430,073
3 S0.579
[ 521,060
200 2 165
X3 .
S.QWIIIEE
e | 2.3E6,.233
12 2o &S50
32 .
g | 358,606
24 67,156
1.732.934
25 Gdl 319
25a 1 B0G50
26 550,265
I 1K) 155

108,521

SOCE (314777
SOCE 2. 200,334
5994 n8

5967617

The notes on pages 7 10 43 are an integral pan of these financial statements
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019,

Cash Nlows from operating activities
Interest received

Interest pasd

Income ax paid

Net cashflows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitics

Purchase of property, plant and equipmen:
Purchase of intangible assets

Proceed from sale of propeny and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows lrom financing activities
Met inflow from issue of shanes
Net Loan /loan repayment
Net cash (used inygenerated from financing

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year

Cash and cash cquivalents at end of vear

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash balances

Loans and advances 1o banks

Treazury bills

Bomrowings

Moie

i

|4
16
15

24

31 December, A1 December,
2009 2R
i 1] WP
{351 5650 S6.E30
K033 58 B R
(418,772} (483,3309
{618) {40
(198,916) 684,283
{0 020y (31,224
312 443
{98.718) (30,783)
I 78664 (246,963
| 78,664 [ 246.963)
(118.980) 406,537
1104470 BT 432
QRS 490 1. B4 7
" 246,242 334.06]
470524 FT0L409
2687125 R0 CHOH
GRS, 104,470

The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral pan of these financial statements



HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited
Mate o the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

&1

Lt
{a}

Ceemeral information

HASAL Microfinance Bank Lim#ted was incomsoated in MNigeria a5 a Limited Lihilny Company o
17 Seprember 2003, under the name of Ril -Gwari Commusity Hank Limied The name of the bank
was changed to HASAL Microfinnce Bank Limited by special resohution on 13 May 2008,

The principal sctivily of the bank & the provision of mecrofinance banking seryvices such as savings.
loans and sther fnancial =erveces.

The adifress of s regisnered office and principal place of business s Flot 1652, Abmadu Bello Way
Garki Dastract, Alsiga Migerin

The financial statcments for the year ended 31 December 219 wene guthorised for issue by the Board
of Drirectors on 8 May 26

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal sccounting policies adopied m the preparation of these Tnancial staterents arc sel o
below, These polichs have how consistenthy applied b0 all the years presented, unkess otherwase
St el

Biasis of preparation

These Tinancial sintemenits have beon prepenad in sccondance with Intematonal Financial Reporting
Standards { IFRS) a3 isued by the [ASE. Addpional mtcemartion required by natiopal reguiations. is
mchuded where appeopriaie

The financial <ntemenis are presentod m Maira, which s 1be microfinance - bank’s functsonal and
preserdation cumency. The figures shown i the finmcal sestementd are stated in theanzands.

The disclosures on rndksarising fromfinancial instruments awepresented inthe
financial risk mansgernent report contained i MNate T&RIT.2

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Mo and amendsd standards adopied
The following starsdards have been adopted by the micrefmance hank:

IAS 19, ‘Emplowves benefis” was revised o Jume J0L1. The changes on the Mioofinance
bank’s accounting policsss had been o follows: to immsediavdy: eecogaise all past senice coels and
replace imerest codt and expected retum on plan assets with A pet Eleresd amount  that s
caleulatad by apphing the discount rie 1o the ne2t defined benefit labiliny {asset],

Amendment to JAS |, ‘Froescid sement presentation” regarding  olher comprebanaiie @eome,
The mafn change resuliing from these amendments B a roguifernent {of entitics fo group dems
presented in other comprebensive mcome” (OC1) on the hask of wisether ey are potentisdly
reclassifiable o profit or ks subsequently  (rechissification  adjusiments).  The impact of this
amenrdiment t+ & change in the predentation of the Stalement of profit o loss and other comprehensive
ncame,
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HASAL Microfinnnee Bank Limited
Naote b the Financial Statements
For the vear eivwded 40 Deeember 2019

ih) Mew standards and inrcrpretations not vei adopicd

B

A number of mes asnilards and amendmonts g0 sandards and  intaprotations are offocing foc asnaal
periods heginming after | Jenuary 2008, aod hive oot bom appial in preparing thoe mneas finanial
shibeem s None of IBese B-oespecied 1o hme . sipnalant cifest on o the fmancial statements of e
nekctsfmance bank

IFRS 9, *Fmancal meiramests’, addross 1B clesifoaton, nasaremont and rocogniios of fieancial ssscs
and financial Esbilics, The main change &5 that @ caes where ihe far valoe option s aka for fimescil
Eahilities, 1he part of 3 falr value change due o an enmy"s own erod risk & econded m othar conprchensive
ingome nithe thas the Stement of profit of kes and ol comprehensive incvme, wohos thid croakes
an accoantmg  Eismaich.

amendiments 80 1AS 32 Oifseting fimencial s and financal labihess this chnfic i pequiiaisies. i
the offset of financial sssers 2nd financial liabilities, Specifically, the amosdmab clinibes the
meanig of tumenly Bas 3 lepal enforceallc oght oF sa - off ] smulEsoous el and
st emanl’

The direcioes of the microfinance bank do not snticipate that the application of rthese amendments 1o 1AS
A3 will have a sksesfeant Enpactk on i fnsscil statemeits a3 e meendinance bank does pot hove any
finane@l sssets and fnascol Habilines dhat qualify For offea.

Financial avsess snd labdliries

The micrafumcs bank matilly recopniees fnancial nstraments on the dase ai which they a0 origmatad. All
Fmancial mgruments ore ingally recogniead on the rede date ar whach  the peomBamce buank
acomes a pany 1o e contracted prviesns of the Wsrumem

A fnancial e or fnancal ety & mezsared matially ai far valee plos for fnancsal maraments net o
Fair vallpe through prof or ks, Irensaction costs that are darectly apnbutable 10" i soquisition. or Be

320 Fimancial asseis

Tho mErlnesos hank’s finangml wss were clissad mio the llonmg 1AS 39 coegomss:  foans and
recetvaliles and held-eo-maaturin.

Manszement detemames the cheaficaton: of s finsscild netrummis ol suial rocegntion dupedng oo the
nanzre and parpose of fmancial asets and management inbonbess

in) Loans and receivables

Lasss and seeeahles are sop-derivative finamcial stz wih finad o doweminable paymonts thal-ane had
guitod 1 an sctive market, other thand

1 those e e mazepfinanse bank mimds o oel] immodogely or = theshort perm, which are chesainod a6
bl for eradmg. and thess that the enhi upon mitiad pecognaine designaics o= af far valve throagh profld
o i,

wh Those thar te mcrofmmoe Ponk upon mmml recogrmon deagmabes e ovmbsble for wabe or

@) those For which the hoble nay sl rcover sobasatally all of 2« ingwl wveonmt, other han
b of Crolil detendrabion

Loans and rocenables ae wibally necopniead ai fair value - which B the cash comsadomleen fo oRginge o
punchase the boam angd mvovable eclulmg any trmsachon oty ~ il mosane] sabsojueniiy at amedtiial
cond waing the effecine mionest e method, Interest 0w boans and tocehables are meludad b e profin o0
s dmil repoited as e moane



- M MM EM EEEEEENENEENEENEEEERRRERERETSR

HASAL Mierofinance Bank Limited
Mote o the Finacial Siatements
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2019

The microfinance bank's faencal mssés claxsifieod 2 loars snd feccivable are cash haliness. koans
and advances 10 hanks, boans and advances 1o customers and other assets

iy Held-te-miatuiit

Hebd-to-masterity  finuncial assets are non-demative  fimancial doseis with fived o determinahle
paymerts and fived maturizies thal the miceofinmee bank s mansgement has the positive miention
ond ability 10 bold 1o masursy. other thim:

I} those b the mcrofinance bank upon Eniglal pecognibon designates as ar fair value through profin
or |
E) those that the microfimance bank designares as avadlahle for sale: and

mj o thet meel the defimition of kans and recenables

Thede are innilly mecognsed @ e salee nekidin dircet and incrememial | bansacton | dosis
and mesaired subssquently st amormied cosl, wsing the effective interes method.  Interest o beld
19 maturity Tmancl aesers sre incleded in the profis o lods and reporied 25 ntensst incame’,

The microfinance. bank's held 1o maturicy. Wvestments are treasary bills 28 the reporting dates
presenaed

2.2.2 Fimangial liabilities

The microfinance bank’s holding in financial lishilides are thowe subsaquently carded & smorised cos

{a) Oiker Gnaacial liahilities

Chber fwmancial babilstics that are not classified as a1 fair valge through peaft o ks, fall mie this
category and are mesured a8 amortised cost. . Finamchl fabdlities measired af amoniced cod sne
deposits from customers and other fahilitics. kberedt on ‘other financial babilfie" are inckaded i the
ot o oss and seporied as berest cxpense’.

.23 Derecognifion

Fanclal assets are derecognised when the comraciual rights 1o receive the cash flows from these
assets fuve ccased 1o et or ihe assets have Been tramsfermad and subramntially Gl the risks and
rewards of cwnership of the assets are also transferred tthat ix, if sbszantialty all the rides and rewanfe
have mod-been tramsiomed, the miceofinasice bank tesis control 10 e that conbmuing mvalhvement
on the bt of @y rtained powers of control does not prevent derecogniton.  Financial
liabilities are derecognised when they have beon redeemad or atheraise extingumshed

214 Reckassification of financial assets

=3

Reclassifivations are made ot fair value a5 of the reclassification date, Fair vitlue beoomes the now cox
of amortsed cosl osoapplicable, and no reversals of (el alee gains or Josses reconled before
reclzsafieatban diate aze subsepaently made Effectivg inberest raes fiar financial el reckasifiad 1o
wans and receivables and held-to-maturity  categories are determined. #1 the reclissification  date
Funber increases in estimates -of cash flows adjuid effective imeresd rates prospectively.

The microfinance bank may reclisily s finaecial instoment when s iendions  and  the
characteristics of the fimancial manment changes

CHsetting fnancial Instraments
Financial  adets and  lishilities  are offset’ amd the ner amous reported B He saeinent  of

financial position  when there §s a legally enforceahls rght 10 offwet the recogmmed  amounis and
there & an indention 1o sweithe o0 8 pet bk o7 realive the Al and selele the Fmbiliy simultaneonly



HASAL Microfinance Bonk Limited
Hote 1o the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 December 3019

14 Determination of fair value

L

Eor financial nstrumss traded an octive nurkets, ibe delemination of (o value of fnescisl stz and
finarcial Nabilities 3 based on quoted marka prices of dealer prce quotatons. This mclades. hsnad egunty
dhcuniies and guotad do insremenis on mypor cwchanges | for cxample Nigera Stock Exchangel

A Fnancial melrumend  ds oregarded  a guolad Boon ocine market  # guesed  poices are reddds ansd
regularly availanls From on ewchange, deales. broker, industry group, pelcing wmice of regulson pocy,
and’ fhie prices repeesont sctual ond copularks coguming marksd irsnsadods. on an am's kegph bass |
ihe ghone criteri ane geol met. e markal & repanded & beep madive, Indications that a suekel & mactine e

when there & 3 wale hid-offer spread or sgnificant worease i the: bid-offer spresd or there ane fo focent
Aranseton s

Forall atber financial instruments. farvalue 15 detgrminsd pang valuaticdn lechnigues.
thete technayoes. Takr valses are odinabal feom observahle dvs in pespect ol smilar Fnancwal insarusmends,

sing modeh 10 edtimate the preamt vaiee of expocied future cash Foews o other valmnon techmiques: usmg
mpuls existimg at the mssaromonl dales

The camying amwunds of the fmancial et cheifal o leans aail rcovables approsamate thear far
valuis

5 Ilmpairmsent of financial avweis

The microfinance  bank mesiss o the ond of exch repoming  pered  whether  thire | 5 objectine
evidence that 2 fimmdaal osvet or @ groop of financal assels b impaeral. A fnescid osset oF groop of (inescnld
asarts s mmpamed ond mpamment bosbes are inoumed onky of there s objectne. evidmce of pamment
os @ nesad! of ong or mone cvents that oocurred | afier the mnad recognsion of the asse (0 loss cvent’) and
thal loss cumt (or - ovmis) has an mapact o the estimaiesd

fumere cash floes of the finonclal s or
groap ol Tinanveal s that can-be nelahdy estinaaied

The cnteriy that the mecrotfinance bank sses 10 datamune thid there 5 ohsoctive  evidinee. ol an
et ks nchede oostence of the folliw NE CEATSanTes
Erelinguendy ® condracoial payrmemis of posoipal o méncs,
Cash fhony diffbculmes exporionoad by the borower;
Breach of loan covenanls of o itions:
Inatsison of banbnapicy prococd s
Deicrmoration of the bomowe’s compaiing position:
Deveriorarion in the value of collneral;
Ervnngrading belva amvestiment grade kevel;
Rigaiticant Mnancial dilficuly of the ssue or obligor
% Brgach of conemel such ax o defaull o dedinguency in mieres or principal povments;
The ke, For eoonomios of kegal fetsors reliding Do the boreaer™s Tmancial difficalty, grmting 1o the
hodrea o A Comdtsand il the ke would nst othorwmse comsader;
11 Becvmics: provabie that the birmowsr will owder handrupacy or-olber financiml reoegan bizion:
The deappeinnce of @ acine marka S that financial asset becasce of fmcind ddficuiss: ol
Cbservahle . data sedcaming tha thore & an mosprable docreswe im0 the stimaed  figure cosl Dows S
s paerifolo of financial mocts smeie the wnal recopnation of thowe st akhoagh the devesase cannsg yei
e idenrifiad wih the indliviilusd fnascal et i the perfods, nolsding: adverse chanpes w the pavmens
sanss of bomewess in he poetfohe. and mational o local ecimomic cosditions thal
U oarclate will delauls on ghé assels i the postiol



HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited
Miote to the Financial Stotements
For the vear ended 31 Decemibser 2019

The microfnance bank firsl sssesses nhethar objecine evidence of enparmvnd cxes ndiidaally for
financil sssets that are indnvidualky significmt, and mdnidually of collectively for financial assets that e
oot individually sigmificant. I the mrofinance bank dasmae that na ebyectivg evilenee of impainment
exiats for an indivadually sscsnd financial nsswt, whether significant or not it includes the a4t in & group
of Binancial pssets with somir oo 1k chamcterstes. ana colleetively asvsesses tham for snpairment.
Azsets thil age Bdradually dacseod for mpainrent and for whch aa Epamoani kass 6 oo Snines i be
recogmisod Ee mit inchded i a colltivg seccment of impairmenl.

The amssant of the Joss is messured ns-the diffamee berwoen the aoe’s carmymy amoust sod he proeont
vakic of otitased future casl fhows (oxcluding funere crali kisses that have nat o incumed) decountod a1
the fnancial azst’s orgmal cffoctive interest rale The camymig mmount of the asset B-reduced thiough
the ie of an alowance eeoant s e amounl of the s & fecognisad | profit o koss.

The calcubition of the pecsent vabue of the estinated futare <ash floms of a collecralizal financral st
reflects the cah fhpws thal iy reah Trom farechomre ks costs for obtainmg. and slling the coflstoral
whither o ot fosockosane 5 probahle

For the purpoescs of 3 eofline: evaliown  of espaimment. Tioanoul asscts anc proupal on the hass of
simwilar eradi ik charsceristscs (Le. o0 the basks of the company’s grading process that considers asset
Iy duzery, gevgropbicsl locstion, collateral ype. peat-due stz wod . othor eckaant hctor:) Those
characleristies are relevant G0 e cmatvon of future cash flows for groups of such assss by beng
indicative of the deblors’ shiliy 0 pay. all smeants due secordisg o chie contracual wrme of the Jssdts
being ovalaatal

Future cash fhows m o growp of fmancal ossds thar are colecnvely  ovilualed  for mmpasmisent  ane
sdimatod o the basts of (be contracrual sl flows of the sssets i the group and hisorical ok
oporicnce for mscts with credit nk  characiorsties similar 0 those o the group. Historical Loss
exporrce G adgustod on the basis of cament obsenable data 1o eeflact e effects of cumront conadnens that
didl mot aifect the perwsl oo which he historical kss oporionee & basad and g0 remine the offects of
comdions B the historcal penod that dio mor surmenily @i,

Eatmmates of changes in future ciohi foss Tor groups of aset e refloctod and desitonafly. consistent with
changes i eelmed ohacrvable data from period 10 peredd (for cxample. chasiges in unemploment Fales,
property prices, paymenl stabus of oier Thotoes mdicative of changes i the probubility of heses in the
groyp and ther magnitudel. The mcthodoksgy ssd avumptons used for extmating futare cash flons ane
resicwad regularly by the company o reduce any differemces- between o estimates and scioad foss
ENTIChO

When 3 Lan i ancollecible 1f B writtm off agams the relatad proviseon for loan impasmend. Such
loainis ae wrimes ofl afor all e O Ry el have bem |;-.|III-FI|'|.II1'| and the amimant of the s
has om distemnined. ;

bmpairiscit  charpes rebaing w0 kone and mdvamcss oo banks amd  cestomens. are - clesifiod in
“mmpakmiend  charpos for orodie esses®, The impammont charge for other gssetsis inchuded in odleer
ORCTAlNTE 8Os

I Collateral
The macesfinzace bank obiams collaoral where approprizte. from costoiners o manage ther coadit sk
expsine o the cedomer. The colliteral nommally takes. the form of B Bm ovey the cudamer s atsets and
gives the company o clim of Bhsd assets B ol enstsg and furare customer w the owent chal the
wurstomer defbudis %

Collsternl meconed mothe form of csh oo rigonded o0 the asement of hoancal pestion wth 2
comppogdmg  Ebadny, Colleeral seconved in other Toms s pol neconded on the stabomcnt of Firiamnaial
ponilion, These Bome are maigned to deposats rocotved Brouti bank o odher commbapanics. ARy InEes
M:I-_I:.H T T (5 ] e arsing rocorchad o Ese ilonesD Qpemse or  mieTesd @i Tﬂl!"'l.."ﬁ'li'-'iqfﬁ
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2.7 Revenuse recogmktion
(&) Inleres incame and expaose

Ingerst mwomae and expaiee B all mred-barmg financial mumens ane fcogmscl sahe @b
incamme’ and ‘mionce capense’ 1 the oo slatainenl wsahg the cffac me mitetes! msthad

The effecine intinest mcthed 1% 3 methdd of calculaimg. the amivrteod cost ol a (manssl osd oF a
fmancial babdwy and of allocatiog the olinest moomie of micred opose. o Ehe Televant paenods The
effecitve  interest mate 5 the rate thal ewcth dicouss - oienmal  foioee cash pomails  of  roooip
'|hn.u.g5h. the expocted  hife of ik foasod wseument or, whes appropnaie, - 2 shonor penod 10 the net
carrviy amoant of the fnancal esoe o (Eancod sdilny, When calculaneg the effecone miered raic, the
Akdulsiasce bank ofiide cah loms Courhidorny 4 comtractual torme of the Teumcnl insrumisy | for
nample, propasieEenl ofptons) et does ned cossaber flanire oredil bss The calulation imcludes alf o
sl poemds pas] oo ponead  BOwom pafies (0 e Sonifacl thal aiv an miegral pan of thsd eftoctne
wmbcrest - mite, Eansscisn  oosts andd all ofhor promiums of desousts. W hae the estimabal cosh ilons on
financial mects s sshsoqieonily rovisod. ot than mparment beses, the carmmp aimoant of e Tmascul
st i dpusded 1 nefloct sctual and rovisal ebmalal cab Bews

snparment lois, mbaed movme s recogndral wyving the mee of inerest sl 1o disgoum e Tiure cash
thrws For the purpoeie of pacisuneg The mpasmanl loss

{Bh Figs and commitahin . moonme

Vabes includad in the effeive mioed cakvbion. o and commbsioes ee mwoepnizad  om an
deofaah baon ds dhe senice B providal. Feor saild consmisions nod msegral 10 offective insafest rale are
by ﬂ{!f'll.‘.ﬂh'd'. Hoes e esand o) lfm v and other inooame

18 Cash Mo stagemeni

The statoment. of cash fows shoms the changes i cath and coch equivtlents aring dunng the penod from

Upaaling actinwhcs, micsbag sctivies amdd Tnancing actpaies, Taeh and cash oqunalknts inchide Tighh
bjusd invesdmyencs

The ceh fhoms from operatisg actnities are daeminad by wsing the indingt mabod. Nat mcome s
thercfore adyused by son-cash itome, sich & nzsaranm! gans or b, chanpes i provissoss, a5 well ax
changos fan operitng ety and habdices: In adidithos, afl moooee and cuprses (rom easl Hansactaons

thal @ stiribwmable fo myveting or fmancng aciaveis are climinasad. Interess roverved of pand i chisafied
s operatim g cash v

The cash flows from myvetmy and finuicig acbivitics are debermined by usisg the inditect methid. The
meradmanis bank’s dsiament of the cash fows o opaating.  myesting . sl Imancing  cabeporny
depiiids o the microfinance. hank’s hidinss modd imanagoment approach

For the papodes of the cach fow  statement, cash and: cash

cqunakmis  nelsde b balEes,
treasiery itk sod s and advanges g banks

Leases

(@l Laiey abe dnsdod it finance loases and operming bases. The
in mTelmece ok v B¢ koo
Upsirating |ease

Leses m which @ significant pomion ol e mks and rewardd of awhetslip  &re rolained by anatho
paty, b hssor are Clasified o ooporating e

l I Once s fnoncial asst o 3 groop o smillsr Gnancial assas has beon wrdten down 3 6 relll of o

siw Payments, dneludiog Piepavmenis, inade whider
§ Lo
TRl s Dol of amy incenines reoeived Trom 1be lessan ame oh e B the moshike <bsbomorst

; il
-lr.'-_lphr-«‘-mr baizs v dhe e of the ke Wien an iperading keise m formimaivd  hefore Ehe b
P hus Coypred. any posment sequmsl e Be miade (0 the less b oy ol penalty s rocognmed as

o exngwmsc, m e porsed] b whach serminamon fakes place
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Fmance banse
Leases of adses where the company has subasntially all e nsks and rewards of ownership are
claified ax finance beases,

Finance leaws are capitalined & the lease™s commencement at the bwer of ilve falr value of the leased
property asd dbe present value of the mEnimum leass payments, Each lease pavment = allocased
between ihe Eahility and fmanée charges %0 as {0 achieve 8 comstant it on the liance balasce
ocatstanding. The cocresponding remal obligations. mel of finance charges. are included i deposits from
bariks of deposits Fom conomes  depending on thve counter party. The mterest clement of the finance
wost s charged to the income statement over the lease period 20 a3 to produce 4 constant peradic e
of interest on the remaining balanee of the Babiliy for cach penod.

The microlinance bank i the bessor

Operstnyg  lexse

When asrets are ubgect tooan opeatmg bease, the aseets continue 1o bé recognared. o propony amd
equipment hasnd on the natare o the el Lease Beame is rocopnized on a siraight line basis

Fmance loixe

When asesls are hebl subject 1o a fiimce lese the relited sset B derecopmized and the preseni
salus of the kase payments (discountod a1 the interest rate insplivit in the lexe) i recognized ac a
recelvahile. The dilference between the grow receivable and the present value of the recenable 1%
recopnired &5 angarmed fnance meome. Lease income & recopnind  over the ferm of the lemie wsing
the net mvestment method (bedore 1), which reflects n comsant periodic mee of reum

R {1]

PFroperty and equipmeni

All property and eguipment weed by the microfinance bank: s stased w1 histomical coa bess aocemalaned
deprecimbon and accomalated impalrment loxded, iT sy, Cosd includes expenditore that i
direcily merhwiable 1o the sequeiibon of the Bems.

Subseguent expendilones. are inchided in the gssel’s carmving amount of are fecogninnd o4 & separats
asdet, A% appropnate; only when i & probable tha Ritire economic beneffs associated with the irem
will o 1w the merofinance bank amd the cost of the #em can be memsored reliably. The
carrying amount . of the repliced part i derecognired.  All mher repar and mamienanse cosis are
charged 16 ather opoating  expenses during . the financial perod @ which (ke A insuired.

Depreciation is cakulited vssag the stralghi-lme method to alocale ther o8t o ther respdual
valises ver thelr astimated eedful s, iming the finthow i,I'I._H amifaira] rees:

Baikbing L ) .
Furnitsre and fittengs 5%
Muor velucle T34,
Flant and machiner M
Communicnion oml office equipmen A¥y

Land iz ot 1|‘-E!:1|'E'|.‘i.atEL|. The azses nesilosl saloes snd eseful lives == resieaad :mn.u:ll;-. and
adjusted i appropeate.  Assels. atereviewed fwimpairment  whemever eovemts o
changes = cucomsiances indicaie thai the camving amount may not be recoverable. Impatrmim
|:|I.'|.rgut are rocognueed inthe profit or e under other opeating. expenses

An adwels camvng amoent i wnben down inmedacly o s recoverable gmount o the awset’y
Carmying amount W grealer dhan §s extimated recoverabde amoan, The recoverable amount & ihe
higher of the acoet s faie valie les goats b sl and valee in wse

1 L e
Ciams and fosses on diegposals are determmined by comparing. proceads with carrving amownt,  Thise aie
i lwdied in othey operating experises o the profit or ks
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Intangible asseis

Computer sadbwane

Uity peocmiad wilth maintameng compates sofiwale MogRmMMe are oogeizad 2 an exponsc as
meuired, Dhevclopamionl  eosts that are direcily ativibatable 10 the design amd testing of dentfinble - ond
umique software products controllad by the mevofinande bank, ard recopnoed o emngible stiets when
thve followmg cntora- wre mt:

In 15 1echnacally feashle w complete the soltuene prosduct 5o tka b well be svailahle for s
Managemend intends 0 complete the sefbwate product and use o sell §)

There = an ability 1o uee of sell the softaane prokde)

W can be demvonattatod low the software peodocd wall pescrate probable finire econamic
Erneles;

Adeguare technacod, financial and oilver resourdes do oomplete the des elopment and 1o wie or scll
the softaare produc  ane available o

The' expenditare atnbstable to the software product dusisg it dovelopmment cae e relinhdy

o skirod

Subsegoest  eapomdhiture on computer sdbasre eapitalized omlvwhen il increases . the
future coomemis benefiss embodliod o oibe specitic asset jo which if relates

Digect compuier woftware. development  dosls secognied s mianpble odsds are amomizal  on the
serabght-lige  Basis ovef 3 veiss and are camed & ool [ poy sccomulased  amortisanion  and any

secamulated. empaamment Josses, The caryving amoust of capialood compator safiware 12 eoviowod
snnially  amd 5 writien  dous  when  the  camdng  amoust cucoadis i recoverable  aimeanst

Impairment &f mon-financkal assets

Asiets ane reviewed for impainnest whenever events or changs in crroumstances indicare that the
CAFTYERY amsunr mas nos b reconerahic -'I.d.u;hl-m,&l!:.. |||ung|'|1l‘.|:' arsets s hove as ingddefnine weetiz] life
are ol subpedt o Emoetisation and are jested anmually Toc ompairmsest.  An empaimment loss B
recognized for the amount byowhoch the as=et™s carmying amsunt exceeds i recoserable amoant, The
recoverable amoonni is the higher of am asset’s fair vabue less coms o sell aed value B ese  Fow ihe
purposcs . ol dssexmmy  lEpainsont,. ascls oare proupad 6t e bwest levels o whikh  there. are
sparancly  idenitifighle  cash  inflows (cash-pomcrating wnits), Theimpairmend wdalse cam
be porfominad om & single d=a whon the far valee less oost (o sebl or the valee moese can e detosmianed
relishly. Mom-financial  geets that suffered impairmant @ reviewed Tor possible reversal
of the impairment ab-cach reporting date

Impairmmnt fosies nocognived n prior penods are axsessed ot each reponting dste for any smidicaivons: thar
the Era - hos slecreased or no hagper exisds. An impaimeest loss s reversad of there bizs been 8 charge
in ke caimaies used & determine the recoverahle amonnl, Ar Empainment foss §s reversad only 1o e
expenl il the aesel’s camaily  rikenl G el dmiend T LRATVERE - Al il il Rave Biim
daaminal, ad of déprociatiod o amerleabin ol 60 appamsnd loss bad  been fodognised

imcome  tavatbon

Carray moeine s

Incoone max b ondeulated on fhe basis of B spplicable By law in the respedting  jussdiction  and 15
resogiasgd a3 an oipense (eneomel For the poned. cxoopd o the oxkont ikt curmoml fax relaped b ibeen=-that
are  chargad o cordibed a0 oofher  compedicnsive | Imcome o direcily 000 oguity.  In dhese
ciumstanoes,  ourrent @y 1 charped or orediied e oteer . comaprehienaive Imgeme oF 1o oguity | for
cxample. ourmend @N om gquiny ansmrumeds for o wohich the endiny has ebected 1o pEsent gams aed
lpei in nther compeehensive income),

= —



TEASAL Micrafinance Bank Limited
Mate b e Financial Stalements
For the yenr ended 30 December 2oig

{hi Dieforrad inopeae s
ifenad iBoome fay o prdsicd o m Tl esiee fhe lesnilicy il o all  Rcinporany

dellcrenses an=ing betveon the tax bases of msscts wnd Teabilivles an

1 their carmying amsounds in the

tinamicial datemonit. Defomed moome o o0 devermmed  wsmg @ raves (and lzwa) that hovie e
endcred or sgbstsniially enacted by ibe dawe ol Be satement of fasncil  pesition . amd  are
enpcied b _||'.I:||_-_ sihien the relgiad defarad incaie lay 38 i reeleied or the defiared incoimne Las

lalilily 12 i

Bedorrad ras labdloies are recogmmal G alfl waable (anqoramy dhillsiomces
fHErary

[T

When the dolrrad fak lubiiny: anses T the migial rocogmifion ol gosdaall o of an aiss

o habelity w3 tramsaction dhal 5 nod 3 busindss coenbination gand, wtotee pime of the (ramsacis
alTects pisther the devounling peedit nor sable profis of loss
In e specl  of gaxahle TSI Py diffences  seociaial  with mvesdmests i sebswlimne.

b AT

infercEts an pMEl vendures,” Wi the mmieg of (b deversal al the BeTIparan;
differences can b comirollad. ansd it & prohabde tha the tomporary diffrences will Dot e ere i the

Fresecahle furure

Defirred b assels are recogniscd  feor all dedeenbde  remposary - diffcconicss carry Borwand  od
s 1 drodits amd wnosed o bosses, o the oxtont thae 31 is prohshle that daxable profic will he
avitlnble Bgains ahicl the deduciile domporary differoeces. and the camy forsand of enused s
creifete and unpsedd tax Boeses can e ol Bl excepl:

Where the deforead i assed relaking (o the daducishle rempaaiars ditlsrends anses Inmm Uee iftial
ERvogmitin il an 3301 o ::.'l!'ll..ll:- in a transastioe (B3 = fod & Busnads combsnalion and. at ithe fime
ol e wmnsaction, affects neither the Aoeounling profil s Lakable peodfil o s

In resped o dedwciible  fomporary  differenoss  associted  warh o vostments i
subsidiarees. assoviases ansd sl i i Vomriures, datermed iax agcene Bre r,._l\'|_-|’—_.:=_|_\_1 -\.t'||_- 1 1|-|.,;
ciiemd bl ol 2 peobable gthat dhe DETEPF ary dif¥eremees  will foverse m ihe forceoahles fulire sl
inadle profin will be avaclable againa which the emporary difforonccs can he diilised

Thepeincips] temporary  difermces stee (fom depreciation  of property. plant and
CyuiprEcrl poosEslods B pensaiend and othice ot -reniremed Denstins i Carty-eernands: How ever
the deferred imoomie LN 13 Ml socounsed  Sor OF M Arrsgs  frem imital Ty OF AR Freec
or wahiliey = a transactem  other than o basinss  combination  that af the dme of the

irsnsacison  affocts mesiher accounnag mor moable prolit or o

The e effpets ol carey-Borwands of unased bkses, unused lax erodsis ged other defored sy Fasgls drg
v when i 1% probabde thaa future axabie grafit will besavailable apaiest whicl  These
fiveas and odmer fompwadry Jiffereuces can b utilisad

e amount of deferred e provided o basad on the expeied mansics of fealiatn or seiflement of
the carmying amoumi of the pieal or labiliy omd is not dscoustod, Deforned i ssets are reviewed

al Each  sEas

el Einadces] posdtion date snd sre redoced B othe esiont that U & na Jonger
prodidale Shat the relased tay benefin willl e realised

Dhelerred nopmie N B piovadal  om T pa dilfereroes ansing - from

sisbssiltarics and oxwociales encepl where the ming of the reversal of the tomparany i

confeslend by phe msirolmance hank amed it & probubsle Bl the delferemor will not reverse in ihe
horedpeaieg  Palurg, | he mucrplinesios Bank has nev insesemands of . cahasdiries  or aseiwcinies

Detiared tas rebated b fxir wolee re-encasaieEnenl of apnty issrumeeis whach are mecogiireed o ogtho

=COR TR i, B oalsn resoeEmisad 10 1ha other fintincidminee income and wohedy scrllv im the :_--._||'|| o
ks ogpcther with the cofarmad gaen on locs, The mistefinasces haak hsd po Syiniy imvoestits 38 the foghrting

el

i5
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Employes benefis

Defimed conirdbution scheme

A defined contribution plan i @ pension plan ender which the compuny pays fived contribetions mio a separate
entiry, The coanpany bas his legal oF constructive obligstions (o pay fuethir comtribaticns i1 the: fund does oot
hobd suifichns assets i pay all emphoyoss the benefins relating to’ emplovoc serviis an the current aesd pros
poriod=

The micrafinance bask pass coutribations oo publicly oo pesvately sdwindstered pension msurance plans on a
coimaciml basii The miveolinssce bank has ne farther payment oblizatons oace tha contnbubions have hoen
paid. The comribaiions Sre recognzscd as employves honefit cxpense when they ane due. Propasd contibutions
ame pecognised o an sl B0 the extont that a cash refund o @ reduction im dhe fatare payRsmts i available.
Amoupts outaanding a5 o vear end are incloded in the retitement benefin ohligation balance va the satenom
oof fimamciad posikicn

Provisinas

Peowisions ane tocigised Br present oblipaions arsang 5 Cossedquences of past events whare 1l 18 bl
vhat & transfier of econsn < benelit will be necosany to setle the obligation, and it can be reliahly cstimated

Wher hare apc i namber of similar obdigaitons, the Tkelihood that an eutfbw will be rguized by setibonmt 1
detormined by considering e class of obligations as 3 whale. A proviasm i meoigised v i the likelihood
al o outilew with Fesrect fo any ode s inclsdad in the sanse dixss of ohiigal=ms may b smail.

Pronions are meessuncd i the peesent value of the expenditurcs cxpediod w0 be requaired o wettle ik ohligalson
w3 prediay rade that reflects: coment marked assosamends of the tinee valug of mosey and the msks specific
the ohligatzrn. The increas: in ihe providion due o pataape of tite B socogitand 52 inlerest duponse

Share capimnl

Slare Eae GiBis

Incremenial coo directly atinbuotable bo the rexue of now shanes or oo o i die :.n:].uin.im of 3 husinoss
areshmaen in oquisty 9% 3 doducison. ot of Wy, Ion the poocoods.

Dividonds on ordinary shans

Dissdonds on ordenary shares are fesrmasyd s oguiny i\ the period in which ey wre dppeoaad by the
microdinamce hank’s shancholders,

Dhvasidends for the vear chat are declared abor the dagc ol 1he statemont ol Dinancral pesilon are ilealt with i\ the
"‘-I.I'."'H'qlili'l'll [l el i [

Retames) carmings

Betamed eamings compnae ibhe undistnbatol profits  fiom poey s -y, which bhave nod hivo
frn liad Tl Bir e 0BT Pl e

TSR Teare ¥

The comieal bank of Mipona togiinies ol ikcholinanse banks (o make 50 anmus] appeopaiation (o o sty
Tesnag, A sdipalaiesl in Section 15,07 of ihe neviced regulmony and sypervisory’ gulded ines e
Sfwrafinance banks in Xegenia
- An appropnation al’ S0P al prafin afber 1ay sasade o the stamutory reserve §s less tham the poad-up shase
capital

5% of profun afler taxal the resotyve ma 5% s of o ansd
« 13 %% of peodin aiber tan of che statubory resen @ 55 greater than the pasd-up shane ospical
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Microfinance bank’s IFRS financial statements and its Anancial results are influenced
by accounting policies, assumplions, ecstimates and management judgement, which
necessarily have to be made in the course of preparation of these IFRS financial
ctatements, The microfinance bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and viahilities within the financial vear. All estimates and
assumptions required in confonmity with IFRS are best estimates undertaken in miecordance
with the applicable standard. Estimaies and judgerents are evaluated on a coglinuoLs
hasic. and are based on past experience and other factors, including expectations with
regard 10 future events. Accounting policies and management's judgements for centain
Hems are especially critical for the microfinance bank s results and financial situation dis
tor their materiality.

lenpairment charges on financial assets

The microfinance bank reviews its loan portfolios for impairnient on an ongoing basis. The
imicrofinance Bank fird assesses whether objective evidence of impairnient exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and for collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant together with significant assels
ascessed individually as sot impaired. Impairment provisions are also recognized for losses
not specifically identificd but which, experience and observable dats indicate, ane present
in the portfolio at the date of assessment.,

Munagement uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit nsk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the porifolio, when
scheduling its future cash flows, The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the ansount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and aciual loss expenence.

The use of historical loss experience is supplemented with significant managemen
judgment to assess whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual
level of inhcrent losses is likely 1o differ from that suggested by historical expenente. In
normal circusdances, historical experience provides objective and relevant infirmaton
from which to assess inherent loss within each portfolio. In other circumstances. histoncal
loss expericnee provides less relevam informatipn about the inherent foss in a given
portiolio 2t the stuement of financial position date, for example, where there have been
changes in economic conditions such that the mast recent wrends in nsk factors are not
fully refiected in the historical information. In these circumstances. such risk factors are
1aken into account when calculating the appropriate bevels of impairment allowances, by
adjusting the impairment loss derived solely from historical loss expenience.

The detailed methodologies, areas of estimation and judgement applied in the calculation

of the microfinance bank’s impairment charge oun financial assets are sci oul n the
financial risk management section. .

&
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Critical accounting estimates and judzements

The Microfinance bank s [FRS financial statements and 3ts financinl resulis are influenced
by accounting policies, assumplions, estimates and management judgement. which
necestanily have to be made in the course of preparstion of these IFRS financial
statemends. The microfinance bank mokes estimates and assumphions that affect the
reponed amoums of assers and lizbihnes within the fnancial wvear. Al eStimates  and
assumplions required in conformity with [FRS are best estimates undenaben in accordance
with the applicable standard. Estimates and judgemenis are evaluated on a confinuous
hasis, and are based on past experience and other factors, including expectations with
regard to future gvenls, Accounting policies and management’s judgements for cerlain
iiems are especially eritical for the microfimance bank s results and Gnancial sitoation diee
1o their matenaliy,

Imsparrment cliarges on financial assets

The microlinance bank reviews its loan portfolios for impaiment on an ongoing basis: The
microfinance bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and for collectively for
Lnancinl assets that are not individually significant together with sigmificant assets
assessed individually a5 not impaired. Impairment provisions are also recognized for Josses
not specifically identified but which, experience and chservable data indicate, are present
in the porifolio at the date of assessmeni.

Management uses estimates based on istorical loss experience for assels with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar 1o those in the portfolio, when
scheduling s future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly 10 reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss éxperience )

The use of historical loss experience is supplemented with significan management
Judgment to assess whether cumrent economic and credit conditions are such that the acnal
level of inherent Josses is likely to differ from (hat suggested by historical experience. In
nonmal circunistances, historical experience provides objective and relevant information
from which 10 assess inherent koss within each portfolio, In other circumstances, histbrical
losa experience provides less relevant fnformation sbous the inherent loss in a Eiven
portfolio at the statement of financial position date, for example, where there have been
changes in economic conditions suech that the most recent trends in nisk factors ane not
fully reflected in the historical information. In these circumstances. such risk factors are
taken into account when caleulating the appropriate levels of impairment allowances, by
adjusting the impairment loss derived solely from historical loss experience

The detailed methodologies, areas of estimation and judgement applied in the calculation
of the microfinance bank’s impairment charge on financial assets are set out in the
Iinapcral risk management section
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Financial risk management

HASAL Microfinance Bank Limited defines nisk as the possibility of losses or profits foregone, which may be caused
by mtemal or extemal factors. The microfinance bank s aim i3 to dchieve an approprale balance between risk and
refum and minimise potental adverse effects on the microfinance bank’s financial performance.

Risk management is camied out by the microfinance bank’s Group Head Credit Risk under plicies approved by the
Board of Directors, The microfinance bank’s Finance department provides central oversight of fsk management across
the microfinance bank 10 ensure that risk are mitigated. The risks arising from financial instruments 1o which the
microlinance bank is exposed are linancial risks, which includes credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,

Classification of Mnancial asseis and liabilitles

The microfinance bank's finapcial instrements are clozsified a5 stated belows

3 December X019

Financizl asseis

Cash and bank balancees
Fancial assets held 1o maturity
Lans and advances 1o banks
Loans and ahances to cusiomers
Diber assers

Financial liabilities

Deposits from ceslomers

Oither liabilities

31 December 2018

Finaneial asseqs

Cosh and bank balances
Financial assets held 1o matarity
Lonns and advances 1o banks
Loans and advances to customers
Oither nssets

Financial Habilities

Deposits from customers

Oriber fiabiline:

Held in Loans and Other financial
Alaburiny receivables L iabilities
L] 0 111
Jdin 242
263,725
470,524
SRR TTS
AGATH
1884233
358 A%
514007 SIS ETT p I TE I
Held 1o Loans and Other fimancial
Matuarity receivahles Liabilitics
™00 b 111 SO0
334,003
QW
270409
4. 748349
A AR
2 R0 G
JRT S0
LR ENITY] LR T[T 3238 406
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2009

Held ta Loans and Chiber finamncial
Maturity receivalbles Linlsilities
31 Decensher 2007 M a0 0
Finamckal assets
Cash and bank balances 1T ES
Financial assets fweld o maswriny 206k M0
Loans and advamees 10 banks 420271
Loass and advances bo customens ART 053
Ciher ads 2L 686
Finnncinl liabilities
Dieposits frien cusloiners 2504, 156
Crcher lizhalities - 255,107
Credit risk

Manapement of credit risk

Credit Risk is the rik 2at the microfinance bank will mot be able 10 recover funds and suffer losses becamse analher part © onahle

or umwilling to mees contractual obdigations 1o the macrofinance bank when doe. The principal banking activithes that creade
exposyre 1o credn risk inclhade lognsand advances to banks, keans and FdvancEs 10 clashmers,

The okl owing peinciples susde eredst risk managensent scross the microfinance hank:

Generaliv, the mictofinance Banks runs & end-to-enad oredit risk managemend process fow for its feans and advanoes 10 cuciomers,

The Relationdup officer penerate new loan customers and camies out the initial A<k asesmenl

Afervands the branch Oredit Committes meets, deliberates e mabe individual snd collestive recomemendations. The comphetesl
eraedil Pequcst document B forwasded (o management credit commitiee for approval

Tite Bank"s risk philosophy on risk Emit controd { Single Ohligor 5 5% of SHF for group and 1% foe ndividualsk the Bank is
fecused on maximizing business opponumiics wiile minimizing sdverse risk. Ol comes; thereby enhancing shareholder value

by el Tectively halancing rish amd eeward,

The principhss that fade the management & our nsk< aoross the eplerpnse are:

Effective balancing of rixk and rewnod by aligning risk sppetite with business strategy, diversifdmg risk, pricing sppaopeiately. for
risk, micigating risk thromgh preventive and detective conlrols, '

Shared responsibility for risk manngement 24 budkneds segments are fesponsible for sotive management of their risks, with
divection and overssght provided by the  Managemend, and other corporate sapport uniti

Business decisions that are based on an understanding of rink a4 we perfotm rgorous assament of sk i relationships,
provducis, srapsactivns aed other business activities

Avoid sctivities thit dre nof consistent with our +alues, Code of Conduet or Poliches, wlslchicontribiites 1 the grotection of o
repaia o,

i
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2019

Proper focus on customers reduces our risks, by knowing our customers and ensuring that
the services we provide are suitable for and understood by our customers.

Risks Appetite

Risk Appetite Statement defines the amount and fype of risk the Bank is willing 1o accept in
the pursuit of its strategic objectives, while recognizing a range of possible outcomes 3
husiness plans are implemented. In arriving at the risk appetite, the énterprise risk framework
which is approved by the Board / Management combines a top-down view of ils capacity 1o
take rigk with a bottom-up view of the business risk profile requested and recommended by
gach business area.

Risk Governance and Structure

Our overall risk goverance structure shown below illustrates the roles aad responsibilities of
the various sukeholders in ol enterprise risk management program Our nisk governance
atructure is reviewed regularly against industry best practices and regulatory guidelines.

Risk Management Framework

A part of the oversight function of the Board of Directors, is the development of the Risk
Munagement Framework. This framework provides guidelines for the Bank's risk
sdentification. measurement, monitoring and reporting, The Board achieves this through its
Board Risks Management Committee which is assisted by the Management Risk Commiree.

The day to day execution of the framework is & function of the Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM), urider policies that are approved by the Board of Directors. The ERM of the Bank
identities, evalustes and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Bank's sirategies
business units,

The Board Risk committee, Board Audit Commintee and the Board Credit Committes assisted
by Management Commitiees, provide wrilten principles for overall risk management as well as
written policies covering specific areas. These include interest rate risk, eredit nsk arwl
liquidity risks, In addition, the Bank audit committees, assisted by the internal audit
department, have an oversight role in ensuring that appropriate risk nianagement processes are
in place and that these processes ane adeguate and effective. The depaniment 15 responsible for
the independent review of risk management functions and the comrol environment

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically and at l.::aﬂt NI 1N A year
upon Board approval to reflect changes in markets, produects and market practice.

-

Risk !dtmiﬁmﬂm!

Early identification of risks is fundamental to the risk management process within the Bank
We are deliberate in prosctively identifving nisks inherent in our producis, processes.
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019,

activities and new markers: This i3 i addition 1o the periodic review of risk profile of existing
prosiuets, processes and activities, To expedite Wenufication of potential risks; the Bank considers
events as they relate Credit, Operations. Market, Liquidity, Legal, Compliance and Strategic Risks.
The process iz achicved through:

Approved processes and templates for documenting identified nisks

A strategic framework for the assessment of risks associated with new ventures {markeis and producis)
Perindic review of existing products

Defined Key Risk Indicators

Peradic risk amf control self-assessment exercise

Risk Measurement

The Bank's ability to measure risks is a key component 1o its enterprise-wide risk managenen
process. Cerain meastrement methods are common to & number of nzk iypes, while others mav only
apply 1o a single risk tyvpe. While quantitative risk measurement is important, we also place reliance
on gualitative frclors. Our measurement models and techniques are continually subjected 10
independent assessment for appropriateness and reliability. For those risk tvpes that are difficuli to
quantity, we place greater emphasis on qualitative nisks factors and assessment of activities to gauge
the overall level of risk in order 1o determine if 1t is within our risk appetiie, or nof,

Expected Loss
Siatistically, expected loss represents losses that are expected to occur in the normal course of
bosiness o a given perod of Hine.

Unexpected Loss and Economic Capital

Unexpected loss is a statistical estimate of amount by which actual losses can exceed losses over a
specificd time horizon, measured at o specificd level of confidence. On an enterprise-wide basis, our
estimate of the unexpected loss associated with our business determunics our economic capital,

Sensitivity Analysis and Stress Tesfing

Sensitivity analyvsis and stress testing are risk measurements technigues that help us ensure the risks
we tike remain within owr risk appetite and that our level of capital remaing adequate. Sensitivity
analysiz involves varying a single factor {fe.g a model input or specific assumptions) to assess the
impact on various risk measures.

Siress testing penerally involves consideration of the simuliancous movements in g number of risk
factors. 1t 15 used to incasures the level of potential unexpected losses for Credit, Market Operational
and Liquidity Rasks.

i1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019.

Under potential adverse conditions, siress testing playvs an imponant role in supporting overall
capilal management and adequacy assessment processes. Our enterprise-wide siress Wsling program
utilizes stress scenarios featuring a range of severities based on unlikely but possible adverse market
and economic events. These common stress scenanis are evaluated across the organization, and
integrated to develop and enterprise-wide view of the impacts on our financial resulis and
requirements. This program uses macro-cconomic projections and applies them as stress IMpacts on
the organization viz-a-viz the various risk tvpes,

Operational Risk

People Risk

This is the risk arising from failure of employees or emplover, conflict of interest or other intenal
fraudulent behavior.

Impact on Business

Human actions (accidental or deliberate) can put the business st nsk notwithstanding awless
processes and techrology. This could lead to financial loss, as well as reputational damage, hence,
not beng able w0 meet or exceed stakeholders” expeciations.

Mitization measures

Zeto wlerance of stall non-integrity issues and fraud.

Effective background checks and through confirmation process on new hires
A disciplinary committee that deals with and resolves emplovees’ issues.
Mecting training and development needs to staff,

Proper segrecation of dulics.

Technology Risk :
This is the nisk of falling 10 implement or develop, as well as operate. the Bank's technology

Impact on Business

This could manifest in defective hardware or software, failures in other technology such as networks
or ielecommunications, breaches in IT security, or lack of support from the manufactures.

Mitigation measures b
Eegular 1T sudit and control,
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Comprehensive service level pgreements with service provaders,

External Risk
This is the risk arising from fraud or litigation by parties external 1o the firm, as well as lack
of physical security for the institution and its fepresentatives.

Impact on Business
This could lead w0 poor service, reputational damage and financial loss 1o the Bank

Mitigation measures
Enforcing sanctions for breach of contracts.
Strict adherence 1o the Bank's outsourcing policy.

Market Risk and Liguidity Risk

The Bank's market risk management process allows discipline risk taking within a framvework
of well-defined risk appetite that enables the Bank 1o enhance shareholder value while
mainlaining competitive advamage through effective utilization of risk capital.

Liguidity risk is the nisk that the Bank does not have financial resources to meet its obligations
as they fall due, or will have 1o meet the obligations nt an excessive cost. The objectives of the
Bank s liguidity risk management is 10 cnsure that all anticipated funding commitments can

b meet when due and that access to funding sources 15 coordinated and cost effecuve

Impact on Business

This could result in signaficant fnancial loss from reduction in pet interest income and
impairment of interést rite-related instruments. In addition. there is an insolhvency and
evientual reputational nsk that could untold.

Alitigaiion Measures

Alarker Risk

Ensuring the implementation of market risk and the board policies including credit limits.
Monitonng and provision of relevamt informatron and data on Lhquidity, pricing and interest
rates to the MDICEQ.
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Continual elevation of risk appetite, communicated through risk limits and overall
effctiveness of the market management process, The bank does not undertake any risk
that cannot be managed, or risks that are not fully understood especially Yor few products.
Where the bank takes on any risk, full consideration is given to regulatory
pronouncements guidelines or policies: The risk taken must be adequately compensated by
the anticipated reward.

Liquidity Risk

Adherence to liguidity risk wlerance appropriate for the microfinance business and in line
with the central Bank s Microfinance Policy guidelines.

Alignment of the business undertaken with resuliant liquidity risk expoesure in
performance management and in product approval process,

Sound processes for identifving, measuring, monitoring and controlling hiquidity risk.
including projections for cash flows arising from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items over an appropriate period of time.

Clear funding strategy providing effective diversification in the sources and tenor of funding.
Ranking and prionitizing funding sources by stabiliry.

Early waming indicators to aid prompt identification of liquidity risk such as
concentrations in either assets or liquidities, and deterioration in quality of credit portfolio,

Proper and effective portfolio management, The banks” liquidity ratio as at year end was 2 ;1

Compliance Risk
Compliance rigk is the risk 10 camings, capital or reputation occurring from violations or
Impact on husiness

This could result in significant financial loss, impairment of shareholders *funds and/or
outright closure of business. occasioned by sanctions or fines on the group, or loss or
suspension of its hoense.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER, 2019,

Mitigation Measures

To ensure effective management of compliance risk. the bank:

*  Develops worksheets. forms and checklists 1o assist the stafl, as they perform their
Jobs, in complying with laws. regulations and rules:

*  Creates an extensive profile of kiws. regulations and goidelines with the COMmpany
must comply, Le . the rule book:

* Analyses the impact of new and amended tegal and regulatory requirements. and
implements such requirements:

* Tracks changes 1o federal and state bane and regulation, and disseminates relevant
information scross the company; and

*  Takes prompt and Appropnate action 10 compliance problems that are identified
through self-assessments, itermal or exiemal compliance audiis,

Information secu rity
This is the nisk of confidentiality, integnity and availability of bank s information assers

lmpact on business
Information assets are critical 1o HASAL Micro Finance bank’s operation and the
contwdentiafiny, Integrity and as atlability of these aseets are crucial to the effective and

Mitigation Measures

*  Development of a risk assessment methodology that that enables the bank to camry out
risk assessment of its information assets

*  Documenting amd standardizing the processes with the bank while building
APPROprEle controds into these PrOCesses,

Legal risk
Our ability 1w identify, mittigare and manage the logal risks in our acti s and business

IRNSACHONS Continges o IMProye.

Impact on business
Increased costs, loss of revenue. abuse and'or intellectal property, distraction, negative

brand equity, sirained relationships with customers. employess. service providers
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Mitigation Measures
faimess. Transacting, bespoke documentation and clarity in documentation and agreements
are some of the measures aken 10 prevent possible conflics, while engaging external

counsel with proven competence in the prosecution of the bank s claims against third
parties and in the conduct of the bank s defense. and exploring altemnative dispute
pezolition mechanisms, among others

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
The microfinance bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2019 and 31
Dizcember 2018 respectively, 15 representad by-the net carmying amounts of iz financal
assets in the statement of financial position

4.2.3 Credit concenirations

The microfinance bank monitors concentrations of credit nisk by sector amd by
peagmphical location.  An analysis of concentrations of credit nsk st 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2008 respectively, 15 set out below:
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Concentration of risks of inancial assets with credit risk exposure

[ndustry sector

The following table breaks down the company”’s credit exposure &l camyIng amounts (without taking
into account any ¢ollateral held or other credin suppont), as categorised by the industry sectors;

31-Dee-19

Financial assels

Cash and balances with banks
Financiai assets held 1o namurity
Loans and sdvances o banks
Lioans and advancoes 1o ustomers

3-Dec-18

Financial asseis

Cash and halances with banks
Financial sesets held to maturiy
Loons and sdvances 1o banks
Losns and advapces w customers

Leographical seciors

Retall and Financial Pulilie sectar  (her seclors
Trade Services
(kD N DD 000 M0
- 246,242 . +
- AR 725 - -
. 470,524 . -
4 K28 TTE - - -
4.828.775 GRE 490 =
Fetail and Financial Publie sector  Oither sectors
Trade Services
i ] (R 004 000
. 334,061 : =
- 0, (KD = 3
- LT0 400 . .
4,749,349 5 . .
4,748,349 1,104,470 -

The geopraphical concemtration nsk of the mcrofinance bank's for iz Tewoial assets canmed ag
amortised cost is Abuja. The counterparties are majorly based in the Abuja pant of Nigeria as the
micralinance bank is licensed 1o operaie in Abuja area only.

Loans and advances

18 ERecE QLAY I;,"- AMERS Q040 JCYVANGCEE 10 SUsioan % 1% summarized as follows:
i din- quality of Loans and ad L s is summarized as folloy

Lieans and advances to cusiomers

Indradual &Collecty -.:|::|.' i|||;|:'.:|:||:1.'n|
Carrving Amount _

A-December, 3-December, 3|-|]I'E'{-'Illb1':h
ol L1 E 2017
i L1 1] i1 8 eI
4 828,775 4,745,349 4 59T 655
4 828775 4. T48 340 4 RU7 hES

—r——
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019,

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thar the microlinance bank will not be able o mect itz materimg financial obligations as
they fall duse. The nature of hanking sctivities requires the microfinance bank o maintain adequate lgquid asseis
to meets maturing deposit obligations.

The overall objective of the microfinance bank’s liquidity risk framework 15 to maintain sufficient liquidity in
order 10 ensure safe and sound banking operations, In managing hguidity nsk, the management of the
microfinance bank, which bears overall responsibility for liquidity risk, ensures that adequate funds are invested
10 match maturaring deposit liabilities,

Liguaidity gap analysis

The table below analvses the microfinance bank s financial assets and financial labilities ino nelevant materi
groupings based on the remaining period at the measurement date (o the eemiraciual maunty date

Carryving 181-365
31 December 2019 amount 0-30 days 31 - 180 days davs
(MM iR 11 el [L111] M00n
Financinl assets
Cesh amed balanees with banks 6,242 246, 240
Financial aseets held o maturity TS 268,725
Loans and advances 1o bunks 470,524 470,524
Laans and advances 1o customers £.825.775 RG34 2 650,447 1.548 935
Oither astels SU.5T0 59578
Total nancial assets S.RTIE 1634411 2600447 1,348,082
Financial Habilities
Dieposits froam customers 2586233 THDERY [ 6540560 [61,342
{Ckher liabilities BT 358 6590
Total financial liakilities 29448928 10949, 530 1654056 161342
Ceap (assels - liabeiligics) 2928015 534 RR1 1006391 1387643
Carrving 181368
31 December 2018 T 0-30days 31 - 180 days diys
L] bl 1711} (M b1 L]
Financial axsets
Cath and balances wirth banis 134,061 ER RN
Finmncial assers held 1o e JOM ER MR 2000 e
Lians and advances 1o banks S0 40k AT0 A0
Loans and sdvances 1o custommers 4, T, 3G 468 A53 2ORGLEI0 1318585
Other wssels 50,645 59 Hal
Total Minancial psseis 912447 1,633,571 2ap0. 310 1318585
Financial labilitics '
Deposits from castomers X RS0 GG 0 % 1. 7L 588 W2 A
Other habilities 4 387500 AR, 500
Tatal Mnancial Hahilities 3235 406 L43.012 1,711 888 DI A
Cap (asseds - liabklindes) 2ATH A1 199, 450 I 248,422 1,226,074
30
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Market risk
Maekes risk i the risk thart changes in market prices, such s imtercst rates will have adversely affects the peofisahility and valee of the

pierodinanse hank. The microfinance hank's objoctive of managng sarke rigk 15 directod nmards cifective ionitonmg ol pooc smsiine
financiol stnaments. The micrafinamce Bank also cnsures @ good may of it imvestments & fimancial assets and financsal lahilities 30 a8 o
max e re e on such msessmens. Market sk anses froim hans sl s o bk g custoryers treasany halks and deposins from

enichmmerd Setiviies of the imerolimusce bk,

The mbcnofinance bark expsure b naarket risk is a0 inieress rate nsk

The nyfcrofinaece bink 15 ot prificaely exposed t fonegn enchange nxks o il docs Wil erade i forcipn durmencecs and a8 i of He
operations are denominabed in the Nigeran Naira. It ia also not signticantly exposad o siher price risks Because of the nature of its 1avestment

potiolo,

4.4, F Measurement of market risk
The imcrofinmmce bank's majos mossurensent toctnigue used fio st gew] controd markes nisk o ootlined below

Seasitivin analyses
Thee inberess cate risk comsitiv ity analyers relladts fhe expechad finamcisl impact from 3 perocntage. change m inberest Fale GuImency raik e

This analysis aeaames that ali i ber vanighles fertiain conatant

Inberest rate risd
[efercss rabi risk 5 e Tk that the Exir value or future csh fhows of a Finaescial instrumest dabl flmciuate bocaiuse of changes (7 market imers)

v The risreitimance Baik EAnages s inlencst 7o risk om 2 nof basis

The sahibe Belom shovws e impact on Bhe Ticnifitassss bank’s profie befsr tax i imenet rates had increased or decreased by 10 percent, with
all ieher variobles beld consians

Impact on pre-1ax profit
I-Pec Xl-Tree D
2019 s T
S0 L b L
iy imoneases in inteness rag 105, 781 150451 156,180
% decrease |6 Inenes rahe (IETEL) {1 50As) 1155, 150

Fair value of Meamcial assers snd liabilides
jab  Fimancial instrumsats not nasarcd 3l Fair value

Tt fiodlcrarinez toble susmimuniaes (e carrying amsits of finemcial gsots ndd liabilies not messirad ot Bair valse on the
i podinamce hank s atapoment of Fimascsil posalaen

M E EH A B2 A A RAEAEAEAEEE =R BER=

I-Dec-19 M-Deg-18 -
Carring Canrylmg
anpaini Falr value nimund Fair valac
Flaancial siiets e} NG B ] %[Nl
“ah ard balasoes with haesks 26247 A 42 13401 T
Fioneial gssets held 1o mabaricy b (Ll RN T3 K (KK 200 1)
Loan and lvances b bars A5 70524 ST AL T, 308
Loam and adyviness e gustomess 4 HIN TS A RILTTS 4, T4A 15D LR B
Oy agscis 5™ ) SR 5, feh
SHTIMAY EREER 2,002,467 SAT1A6T
Flnanchsl Haldlie: z
Dheposits frist cusiNmens 2.550,23) 2558 38N T RE0 2 RE( S
Cither Highilituzs ERLA L AN A 157 SuHb 5T &m0
i o TOITU 1AL AaAle TR0
L|
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 DECEMBER, 2016,

(b} Financial instruments measured at fair value
The nucrofinance bank has no financial asset imeasured at fair valus, Subsequent to ikitial messarement,

() Fair value hierarchs
IFRS 13 : Fair value specifics a herarchy of svaluation techmiques based on whether the inpuots to those valuntion
rechnegues are observable or unobservabic. Observable input reflect marker data obdained from indepenident sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the bank's market assumpseons. These two tvpes of inputs have created the Tollowing fair
value hierarchy:

Livel 1: Chinted prices (anadjusted ) in actve markets for identical kssets or habilites

Level 2: Inputs other than guoted praces imcluded within Level | that are observable for the asset or habihiv, ather
directly (1.2, a3 prces orindirecaly (e, derived from prices)

Level 32 Inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs )
31 December 2019

Carrving amount  Lewei | Level2 Lewel 3
NUNHD  NCO0D b 111 bl 1011

Financial assecis
Cash and balances with banks 246,242 246,242 e
Fenancial aszets held to maturity 268723 26H 73S . =
Leans and advances o hanks 470,534 - 470.524 =
Loans and advances to costomens 4 RIRTTS . 4:RIN-T775
Diher pesels S0.5T0 59579

5873844 2A8.72% SA05119

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers 1586233 - 2586233
Chher labatitics J55 Hth - A58 6005
2034 08 - X0 935

21 December 2008

Carrying amount  Level 1 Level2 Level 3
i 111 N'OM N'ODD
Financial assets
Cash and halances-with banks 134, M) 3384061 d
Financral aszets held o mannty SO 2000000 . .
Loaps and advances o banks AT0 405 - ATO 4 -
Loans and advances to cusioners 4,748,340 - 4, 74K 0 -
Crber afmels S h4R = S0 645 .
SO12407 200000 5712467 .
Financial liabilities .
Deposits from customers 2.850,906 . 2,550, 50
Chiher habilities JRT, M) - JET. 500
" -2 T238406 - 3,238,406
32



Crber liabilities 255107 . 255,107
2. TRG04 . 2. TR0 4

{d} Fair value methods and assumpticns
£} Cash and cash eguivalents

i) The carrving amounts of these balances approximate their fair values, They are on level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

[ HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019,
31 December 2007
Carryving
amount  Level 1 Level T Level 3
SUO00 MO0 »'a00 P (B
Financial asseis
Cask and balances with banks 170,708 170,715 -
Financial assetz held to mamniy 0,000 00K - -
Lioans and advances 10 banks 430271 - 430271 -
Loaps and advances to customers 4. 80T 685 . 4,507 K15 .
Oitler assets 201,556 . LT -
5,500,357 200000 5 RSHLIST -
Financial linbilities

Loans and advances o customers and banks

Loans and advances are carried at amortised cost net of provision for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans
andd advances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expectad to be received. Expected

[h‘pun‘il’-: Trorm CUsImers A3 196 3 3 R340
cash Mows ane discomited ol curment market rates 1o determine fair valoe. They are on bevel 2 of the fair value hierarchy

il Financlal assets held to materiiy
Treasury bills represent shont teem instruements issued by the Central bank of Nigeria. The fair valur of tresasury bills
are deternmined with reference to queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets: They
are on level 1 of the Gair value hicranchy.

v Depsits from customers
The estimate fair vahee of deposits with 1o stated maturity, is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated Fair
values of fixed interesl-beaning deposits are detemminad usng a discounted cazh Now model based on o
current vield curve appropriane for the remaining tenm o manerny, They are on level T of the Bog valae
hiberarchy :

vi) Crher assets and other liabilities
Crther nssets and odher labilities represent monetary assets which wsually has 2 short recyele period and as such the
carvving amount of these balances approximate therr values. They are on level 2 of the fair value

hicrarchy

4.6 Capitzl manpgemen
The Microfinance bank's objectives wien managing capital, is to ensure that it has gdequate capital (o run and g
its banking business and continue 45 a going comcem inlo the foreseabhe Tutune. 13 also ensures that it has
srong capital base so s to be able to response 10 unexpected nsk and provide adequate retums 1o its
shareholders and other stakeholders, The Microfinace bank defines capital 1o inclsde equity and other
FESeTVCs
The Microfinance bank i+ exposed 10 externally imposed capital as <tated by the Central Bank ef MNigeria (CENL

Capital management infonmation ore submitted 10 CBN on a monthly hasis and Aunchitors 1o the Bank are also

required to render an anmieal centificate to the Nigeria Deposit Incurance Corporation (NDIC) that incledes the
computed capital sdaquacy ranio of the Bank.

B
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 20109,

31 December, 31 December,

2019 2018
5 N'O00 NDon
Interest income
Interest on Loan 935,642 023,374
Interest on term deposit 122,204 R7.818

1057 806 1,111,192
= —_—ere————————

& Interest Expense
Borrowings 74.062 T0.087
Term deposits 156,644 403,680
Savings 9614 9.554
440,319 483,330

7 Impairment charge for credit losses
Loans and advances to customers

specific impairment 15,861 34.572

Collective impairment 10,498 9.133

Written off duning the vear as bad debs 26,359 43,705
e ———————— = ————— 1

Management and processing fiee 77976 83,860
Current Account maintenance charges - 114594
Other charges and commission income 84,235 49,825
162,210 145,191

Fees and commission income excludes amounts included
in determining the effective interest rate on financial
assels measured at amortised cost,

W Stafl expenses
Salaries and wages 281.970 288,334
(ther short term benefits 15.610 11,752
Penision costs 32443 34,480

L0 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation 25,906 30,9494)
25,994 3,99
The notes on pages 7 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements,

34
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BASK LIMITED
SOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019,
3] December. 3 December,

2019 pLIN B

11 Other Operating expenses ) N
Dhirectors allowances 44,201 44647
Audit'consuliancy fees 11974 LA2E
Oither expenses (Schedule 1, page 450 1934832 248420
250,069 303695

Cither Operating expeises

12 Imeame (ax expeases
Curment tax:
Si0

Current taxes on profit for the year 20,850

Total curcent tax 20,3540 £10

Dheferred tax

Total deferred tax Asset | Linbility

Income 1oy expenses 20,850 510
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profn befion: imcome 125 147251 B0, 736
lpscoine tmx (30 Tax lfests of 17,375 425
Education tax levy 3475 ES
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tx lesses = .

Tax charge 20 ESD S10
A start of the period 510 X718
Charge for the year Hi g0 50
Pavments during the year (5100 (278)
At end of the period 3,545 ELn

12b Information Technology Development Levy

Information Technology Development Levy is 1% af PBT 1471 107

13 Earnings per share
Basic camings per share i caleulated by diveding the et profit to equity bolders of the
Company by the weighted averspe sumbsr of ordinary share in issue during the yea:

Basic and diluted carnings per share

I 122 Movement in current income tax Hability

Profit{loss) anributable to equity bolders of the Company 124,929 10118
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in ks {in T 11,519 641,519
Basic camings per share {expressed in hobo per share) i, 19 .02
The comgpany dioss noi have potential onduary shares with

convertiple options. Henee, basic and diluled EPS ane the s

The notes on papes 7 1o 43 are an inteygral parof these financeal statements A
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2 HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
: WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2019

31 December, 3 Deeember,
2w 018
14  Cash and balances with banks 11111 ()
Cash 4, 305 RES LT
Current account balances with banks 2001,933 HHATY
Cash balanees 246,242 334,61

For the parpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cagh in hand balances
held in current and call account.placements held with banks and other shon-term highly liquid investimenis
from the dav of acguisitton with Tz than three montls” matarity from the date of acguisition

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of; Cash balances (nofe 14) 246,242 334061
Loans and sdvances to banks {npie 16) 470,524 37400
Treasury bills {note 15) 268,725 201,00
Total cash and cash equivalents 955,490 1,104,470

13 Financial assets held to malurity

Treasury bills MR 725 200000
264,718 2o 0o

Cirrrent 268,725 200000

Mon-curren = -
268,725 200, 000

The reasury bills are classified &= held to maturity and are carried ot amontised cost,

16 Loans and advances 1o banks
Placerments with banks 470,524 70,409
J70.524 270,409

- 17 Loans and advances (o customers
17.1  Analvsis By costomers:

Term loasns X ATHA00 2776727
Cverdratts [ F31.565 1.932.955
Stall foans 400 38 6567
lers

4,828,775 4. 748,349
Curreni 4 528 7175 4. 748349
Peonscurmen! = -
Adlowances for Credit losses (308 TOd ) [206.022)

4430073 4352 327

- -
Allowances for Credit losses is made up of:
Specific - Impairment 33 1650
Collective In 'E"""'i rnent /7 043

Ihe notes on pages 7 10 43 are an integral part of these Mnancial satemenis
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
SOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED X DECEMBER, 2019,

172 Hecenciliathom of impalrment allswanis o losns and sdssnoes be cestemeri:

M December, 11 Pecember,

e 2R
Specilic allow ance (or insfrabroecal *nn el
Ak et o ihe preriod AT ETERE T
Fraparipmens fo Jor e vear
Adyustrsonl -l npasimon Mlisanoe 123679 (rd TR
Chawrged wrine backy For ghe soar {5,561 472
At end af 1he period A 31 b

Collective allnands for impalemend

A a0 the pemicd LLEES 27,411
lempceirogred s o i e

Adjusement ka Impairsenl allosssce . :
L harget wrnie hack) fos (he ves I0455 17113

Al emd of the perkod GIAH S LR NE]
Total inspairnem T, Trihan
Carring amosnt HAXNTY JIETALY
—— =y — s
173 Anabssds by securin: H NDee-19 A1-Dhee-18
MM Nl
Socursd apamd real et 2T s LTI, TIT
Oebsrwia st (AR LaTIHas
S R R L b el
e g e codlateral mocimally. cuocit
whese the owties of the eollmeral is in defaul
174 Amalysi of loans and Advances by Dbl
CLASRKIFICATION AT AMNNE AMEH T AMILNT
L TL) 0l el e
Pesfoming % 1. 781,555 4,304,787 511
Prasa and Watch e 3,703 £.14H 24N
Subnasmbard 2 L3008y 26,131 13,220
Desubidul Lirs 38 ERLL w1, T
Lo 1y WAk 206,30 232481
450774 4,75, N FEERE
Hy matarity:
unsler | saonth L LA 453 il
1o} psbes | T2 Tk 283 1LT12413
Fte et TS R W57 LB L g
| Temcnitn WA [ R L] 1125001
et 12 months AHOLETD J A L
4 XK 77 4 TaE LiK 44T oS

D= 1% Al-Prer=1% LT

18 Chiber asscty and firdpasments Rl N Lyl
(R e T
Sundry debives ek 1,838 § 3
Sovomints Ropeivahhe [E374 RA2% &, 1y
19,552 19.2h2 N2y
Py s AL 44,719 RO
Sinck 5 AnE B EL Gy
Wimndir Advpnois 1137 TA5 L
Ombeys-Acie MFR - i SELLL S{1 MM STETE ]
HINS gl Syaioen sobatuiis LR L | & bk LR ]
LEUE R | 1% 747
feas wpovific aloaances far b {41, 0N (T T
45 03 400, Tk |93, 157
AT el T01.0A8

s b mrode up o the ank s deposit
wth Al Mgndinanoe Bank, For She
inesolveaey ol Arlis Microfinandc Bast, an
impairment allew s bas boon mads 1o tis
i lume wuth CHN dinective

The ek o pages T g6 43 are an inlegral pan of these mandal sliomts
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 201%.

Reconciliation of impairment sllowance on Other Known Loss

Al stan of the period
{Wnite back)/'charge for the year
Ar end of ihe period

The bank had impaired deposit with Atlas Microfinance Bank. This

zalls for the impairment allowance.

Property and equipment
Refer to Property, plant and cguipment on page 39

Imtangible ussets

Cost

Al | January, 2009
Adlditions

Ar 3 December 2009

Accumulsted amaritisation
Al Januory, 2009
Amomsation cldrge

Al 3L Pecember 2019

Carey Amount
At 3 December 20019

At 3 December 2018

21 Diepasits Mrom costomers

emand
Tumne
Bavings

Lourrent
Mom-crren

22 Delerved fax

{a) - Deferred tax avicis

() = Deferred tax liabilivies
Dieferred tax liahility to be recovered within 12 months

{a-b} - Deferved fax Met

X1 December, 31 December,
g9 Inis

b L b B

Ta k1 0,000
(35561 39,361
S 1100 R RTTE
Computer Computer
Soltware Sofrwaire
N0 N'000
25738 25,735
18,256 12113
5,254 35T
B ) %7 ) = 1538
2,145 T.44%

! r I i ! i !.m-
J1-Dec-19 3-Dec-18
N D00 B

257 496 7965
207533 2 357 680
253,403 231261
]15:!|E-JJ -lE:ﬁl gm
2ABA AT 2 550, HG
I-Ihg-19 J)-IMe-18
MO0 bR ITIL]]

L5 0ES

T
45 (145
- 49,045




HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2019. 31 December, 31 December.,
2019 200%

23 Other liabilities e 1] N 000
Sundry creditors 34.077 123.003
Account payzbles 449 368 40,176
Interest payvables 21,348 30,920
Other payvables 232.23] 193,293
Information Technology Development Levy 1,473 107

A58.690 IBT, 500

Other pavables are made up of unclaimed deposits and
taxes

14 Borrowings

Lomg Term Losn 67156 585493
Term Joan = z
TaT. 156 585,493
Bank overdrafis - -
767,150 588,493
Term loan
Current . -
Mon-Current T67.156 558,493
TGT. 156 588,493
Analysis of Borrowings:
HASAL SMEDAN OLOP Prog 46,407 -
FCMB Plc 204,000 .
MSMED Funds IR8. 600 ARE 600
CBX Housing Funds 57,338 50,000
B Fund 74,812 149,892
767,150 T RS 4%
25 Share capital e
Authorised
OO0, D000, D00 ordinary shares of N1 each WEEIRELE RECIRELE
Issued and fully paid
Cipening 641,519 641,519
|ssiied during the vear = L
Ordinary shares of N1 each 641,519 641,519
25a Share premium
Opening 80650 | 30,650
Issued during the vear . -
Ordinary shares of N1 each 180,650 180,650

a9
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019,

Staratery amd Repulatory Bisk Reserves

During the period undes review, there was ransfer o
statutery reserve s stipalited by Secoon FA(d) of e
regulatiny and supervisory framework for Microfinamce
banks 1 Megena

Statutory Reserve
Abstan of the perod

Transfer from profil and 1635 acoounl
At end of the period

Nigeria Prudential Guidelines

3M-Dee-19
MDD

519,013

31.232

= ey

31-Dec-18
g 1H]1
516,503
A5
E10.003

The Bank mattains mformaton on the eradit gquality of 12 Toans and advance: i lime with CBN
prudential gurdelines, Where the provision under prodential goideline i higher than [FRS impairment,
the Bank ey g :il|;|p:|inr||.-n| baied op [FRS and difference between [FRS and Prudential Guedeline
i= recoptived in Regulatory Risk Resseve as non distributable reserve. Where the provision under
Prudenteal Guideline 15 less Gian the IFRS impaimment, the Bank recognises impaimment based on [FRS.

Lonn Loss Provison

Al-Dhec-18
A1-Dee-19

Regulator v Risk Reseryve
Al stant of the perd

Curreni year
At end al the period

Revaluation Beserve

Al =tan of the period
Current vear
At e of the period

0

MGAAR IFRS Difference
N ] NUano Nemna
(LA22RI0)  (A9602X {1,196, TEE}
(RGR 7O (398 T
-Dec-19 Al-Dec-18
N 0
13005 (KR 6 [ 298
{HENT0) 1, oG, TEE
NN — L.M0.088
Fl-Dee-19 3-Dheg-18
b 11 AUO00n
108,521 HOE 520
TR.521 108,521
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANE LIMITED

HOTES TO THE FISANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE VEAR ENDED 3i DECEMBER, 2019,

Rielated party transsciions c
The Migrofinance bank was isgomporated m Nigeria, amd it s coroliad by vanmus
sharchaokions of the company’s ordimany shures,

Tramacticns and balances & lnsider Rolaccd Credin

Thiere arc tramssctions 3¢ outdandmg halances botvwests the key managainem
persiennict and the company im the normal sownse of basisess during 1 Decantber
2009 financial year end - N249,326,029.04 (1] Decesnber 2015 X279,%00,067) .

The Credit Faciliicy wis enmad m 1he nomuol coarse af busimes e conpamies in
bl seteing of Eve hasls Thirectoms: have intenest dusing the vear under review. The
iaeiliny e pesforming and sgnifiantly caosh backed

koes management compensalion

ke nanagenent has heon determinad 1o be the members of the Executive
Cosmmitice {EXCTH of the Micnafenance bank. The compensansn paid 1 key
managamont personsel for emploved serviess 16 hivam bebow:

Sxlaries and otbor shost-eemm emphiveee beneflics

Employees

The sumbser of emplosaes of the Comppany. othit than Cacctoes, i neceryed
Ertaliifisenes i e folloamng raeges (enchading pension conEnbieond and certain
Bt LA waire

bt R Bt AR L]
fom LR ST TRE LT

P SOOGS0 ME
W RS0CH) Tl S0 CHF
B S0 | < S A0
WA andd Nad,
bSO | and above

Compliange with banking regulation

The bank dul ot contravess any ropalaisen of ibe Fanls and Oeher Fundoial
Enstatutions Act 1990 or nelevant girculars issucd by the Central Bask of Nigsri,
ncept the non implensantation of TFRS W,

Evenss after statement of Ananscial poshiion idare

Apan from the gomeral coomamic ofTeot of COVID-L9, there were no apnificant
cvents that oocarred suhsingoee o the stbemsent of fmancial posison date. The
SAFkHES reventive measses ranging from solstion of infocsad porsoes, bockdown i
sl wlsvascmng e imtroducad by Gosemment o ourtml the vieas and pridoct the
Citiren dEerapiod the bank’s cperatioars i the first quanios of vear X200 18 b no
effect on the 2L9 financial satersctts, This, o s theretn: dislonad as o

e juting event during tee permed.

Recomdiliation of profit hefore tax to cash gengrated from operatioms

PriTe d ks Before ancine tan
Adjusirments for:
= Dleprecraiiim
= At on
- Adpustimant
= [Pefid ) Loss From sale'of propemy aed plan
= I-mpuuwni churpeden grodet boapcs
= Ungoma frven sales of peopenty
= Impanmnent write bock s ¢large oo other keown ko
= Inbared meomee
- Inkites exponsd
ilnereaseVibeereane In operating swets)
— Loy el aivamas K gasloesTs
Chelie minets
Increnseidecrease] im oporating Habilifies:
— Ebpoms b [ Surslomnirs
= Diher lizhilines
Cush gemerated from aperations 4L

11 I!Iﬂ_ln'lnn
2aie
' ()
2 263

Ai-Mhec-19

Selhec-18

1

152

3-Dee-19
" (M)

i47 254

o L
5.2
NS

i

26159
i 1A BHM
Adik 19

E R
0

[ Rl
e Ll

[RE T

112

XD 18
™[

[FRE

25417
E i
(214,000}
Fole

353
443
W Z2E
AN ]
443330

140514
LEMAT

Ak, T
132301

b R0
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2019,

3 December, 31 December,
2019 e 2018 o
NOen N"DEW)
Incomse interest 1,057 806 Liiae2
1,057 306 1110192
Crverheads rnd payments for other services 105,422 (47522}
1,163,229 1.063.270
Chher Income 162,210 145,191
1,325,439 104} 1,208,461 {1 1]
o [ ]
Applied as follows:
To pay emplovees:
Salaries, wapes and social benefils 330023 25 344,560 L
To pay government:
Taxation 208540 I & 510 0
Information Technology Development Levy |AT2 0.1 10 .01
Defirmed tax - . . .
To provide Capital 22169 62 EX2.069 a3
To provide for enhancement of assets
expansion of business and payment of
dividend 1o sharcholders:
Depreciation 2599 2 30,990 3
Profit retained 124,929 9 10,118 |
1325439 10 1,208 460 1)

Value added is the wealth created by the effons

of the company and its employees and s

allocation between employvees, sharcholders,
government and re-investmient for the future

creation of further wealth
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL 5UMMARY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 DECEMBER. Z00%.

Assels

Ciih and balesces wirs banks
Fimancisl auets bheld & marurby

s aned gels mnces iy hanis

Lpames amd advances i CussomiTs

Chher masets and prepayments
Property and equipenent
brtsspable asscis

Diefermed income fin A ssel
Toial ssseis

Linkfliiles

Dheponics frons custoenery
Cumeni mcoise tax habibgy
Chter hiahilizmes

e inga

Tofal lahilises

Equity

Share capeal

Share prosaum
Hevaluation Resrne
epalatry itk roserye
Satucery e
Rstaernl carmings
Totsl equiey

Total equity andl Bahalivies

31 Doeemsher, A8 December, M Decombser, 31 December, 31 December,
L) 2E b1 ) Hils Hils
oy PO g P i) WHHE

et Vit il 13400 LS 120, 14 224,400
20872 R LN o5 RNy i 1
270,53 ST A 43).27] £70,124 5] 435
4 AM073 4,343,337 4 A41,558 4,041,562 20| A
§4.579 FRhaR JT 80 FLALLEY s STE
T3], 441,707 407444 i3 R2G 3ROAR
[ TASE 13032 15595 20,285
. - 1LTIE IeTiE 1251
—  LEu.IeR | SRorair T
585,211 JR0 00 JAM. 100 L. 65 00, ThE
Rk 410 ¥4 2102 1AM
RS AT, S(M) 55, T 57245 ETTT
THT A HEE dus U2, 509 UATE e
1.7118M 1H2TA08 ERILT) 4107017 .4m1. 916
#1814 TR 1A LU 404570
TRiLASE 1R}, 650 [ AOLASE Li25a) 7807
41 | .53 10520 -
1A 155 1, B, s | T
80 368 Sl §io 500 51331 417, TH8
(X1477T8 fBLE &2, g ] | A1hed hi.ﬁﬁ
e Y LT X140 2407 h i W R LA 6N I 0655
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HASAL MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEDULE OF OTHER EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2019,

Note 11 31 December,
2019
U000
NDIC Premium and other insurance 17,322
Office Expenses 1,092
Repairs-and Maintenance 2
Transport and Accommodation expenses 4,606
Diesel and Fuel expenses 14,560
Drirectors refated expenses 3,932
Utiliy 7,701
Corporate Social Responsibility 500
Operating expenses S 400
Printing and - Stationery expenses 5,782
Rent 15022
Bank Charges 115408
Security Services 29,583
S1afTf welfare 5487
Telephons expenses 2.0
Vechicles mnning expenses 8936
Local Traming -
Legal Expenses 065
— I93E3Z

31 December,
2008
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13557
4,226
5.502
3571
18,614
3836
98
14,116
5T 4497
0317
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2.240
9547
1{E5400
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245,420




